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Financial data
(expressed in HK$000)

Turnover

Gross profit

GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Profit for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Total borrowings

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Staff costs

Net asset attributable to owners of

FEEECGET) (M) the Company per share (HK$) (note /)
Bt = Financial ratios
BN R (M5t 2) Current ratio (note 2)
RENL KR (M2 3) Quick ratio (note 3)
BEL XMt 4) Gearing ratio (note 4)
BifsE Note:
I BRARA YN R L. Net asset attributable
EBA = HEEA - BEfF to owners of the
e FEEE bR BH#HE Company per share
2 ok i = RBEE - REaE 2 Current ratio
3. RELE = (RBEE-FE) + RPEE 3 Quick ratio
NS
4 aEE = [REEE - BEA 4 Gearing ratio
JElh s
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989,885
(20471)

26,598
1,836,702
1,783,907

73994

95,177

0.449

1.33
[0
103%

Equity attributable
1o owners
of the Company

Current assets

(Current assets - Inventories) -

Total borrowings

EENBHE

2013 2014
1,329,644 2,699,950
24,077 263,275
39,022 90,894
1,954,706 1,714,807
1,893,789 2,267,778
30,459 16,095
89,824 98,163
0477 0.519
[.35 1.25
[.15 1.07
103% 76%

Number of

=~ issued shares
at year end

—  Current liabilities
Current liabilities

Equity attributable
~  toownersof the

Company
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine International (Holdings) Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group"”) for the year ended 3| December 2014 is
summarized in the following paragraphs.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2014, the Group's turnover for the year 2014 amounted
to HK$2,699.95 million as compared to that of 2013 of HK$1,329.64 million,
representing HK$1,370.31 million, or 103%, increase in turnover; the profit
for the year amounted to HK$92.98 million as compared to that of 2013
of HK$27.39 million, representing HK$65.59 million, or 239%, increase in
profit. The turnover for the year comprised sale of wind energy related
products of HK$2,398.90 million, sale of electricity generated from wind farm
of HK$25.45 million, sale of rare-earth permanent magnet motor products
of HK$45.90 million, newly launched sale of energy storage and related
products of HK$175.07 million and sales of HK$54.63 million related to
telecommunication business whereas that of the last year comprised sale
of wind energy related products of HK$1,136.58 million, sale of electricity
generated from wind farm of HK$31.91 million, sale of rare-earth permanent
magnet motor products of HK$44.67 million, sale of chemical materials of
HK$82.79 million (business ceased from the year) and sales of HK$33.70
million related to telecommunication business.

The increase in turnover was mainly due to i) the increase in sales of the
Group's wind energy related products by HK$1,262.32 million, representing an
increase of |11% year-on-year, with wind turbines sold in 2014 increased by
86 sets of wind turbines as to 2MW or [.5MW and there being sales of 506
wind turbine blades as to 3MW or |.5SMW as against no such sales in 2013;
plus ii) the sales of the newly launched energy storage and related products
in 2014. The increase in profit for the year was mainly due to i) the increase
in sales of the Group's wind energy related products, and ii) the rise of gross
profit ratio relating to wind energy related products by 8.7% in consequence
of rise of sales prices of wind turbines and stringent control of purchased costs
of components, and iii) the profit contribution from the sales of the newly

launched energy storage and related products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

GROUP FINANCE

In December 2014, the Group proceeded a placing of the existing shares and
subscription for new shares of 400 million shares, with the placing price of
HK$ 0.75 per share, obtaining a net fund of approximately HK$ 291 million,
which is mainly used for general working capital and to finance projects on
energy storage including the development of wind and solar power storage
integration and that on electric vehicle, thereby improving the Group's capital
structure and enhancing the market value. As such, the shareholding of the
controlling shareholder, China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology
("CALT"), is diluted from 66.75% to 60.64%. The fund has been used

accordingly.

Business of Wind Energy

In 2014, the directdrive wind turbine developed by the Group with
proprietary intellectual property rights participated in fierce competition in
the China wind energy market which has entered into a rational development
phase, and was highly recognized by wind farm developers within the industry
for its simple structure, high reliability, high efficiency and low operation and
maintenance costs. The Group continued to give full play to the advantages
of technology, quality and service of CASC directdrive wind turbines. On
this basis, the Group capitalised on its products’ leading edge and achieved

cost control by adopting the strategy of technology enhancement and batch

Annual Report 2014 | CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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production through research and development, thereby achieving high supply
chain performance and enhanced cost effectiveness to proactively address
challenges. Through Inner Mongolia Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant,
and Gansu Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant, the Group realized
mass production of a number of self-developed models (especially |.5MW
excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbine, 2MW permanent magnet
directdrive wind turbine and 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind
turbine), and adopted the strategy of establishing good relationship with
several provincial and autonomous regions’ governments to gain their supports
and leveraging on provincial and autonomous regions’ quotas for wind energy
to obtain more wind resources in seeking more production orders for wind
turbines, thereby increasing our market share. At present, the Group has
considerable wind energy resources in various major wind power bases
planned by the State, including Wulatehougi in Inner Mongolia, Jiuguan City
and Wuwei City in Gansu, Ningde City in Fujian, Tieling City and Kaiyuan City
in Liaoning, Suihua City in Heilongjiang and Tangshan City in Hebei, effective
pushing sales of wind turbines and bringing in promising income to the Group

continually.

In 2014, the marketing strategy was not only that of exchanging resources for
orders, developing and maintaining key areas and key customers, but also of
participating in market competition on a large scale to expand the sales regions
and increase our sales efforts. The Group had formulated market development
strategies for key regions and key customers. As of to date, in terms of
customers, the Group has established more stable and secure business
relationship with large power companies such as Guodian, Huadian and
Datang, all of which have become our key customers. In terms of sales regions,

the Group has made substantial progress in the key regions of Inner Mongolia,

Gansu and Liaoning, paving a solid foundation for future developments.
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Since the directdrive wind turbines are characterized by gearless drive, the
use of low-speed large-torque generators, full-power convertor and strong
resistance to grid voltage fluctuations, their advantages include low wear and
tear, high efficiency of electricity generation, small size, light weight, easy to
maintain and low operating cost when compared with the traditional wind
turbines. As such, the directdrive wind turbines, in particular, the [.5MW and
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines being launched mainly
by the Group have visible optimism in the market. In addition, the AC-DC-
AC total inverter grid-connection technology employed by directdrive wind
turbines can meet the standards under the "Design regulations for grid-
connection technology of large-scale wind farms™ issued by National Energy
Administration in 2011, which provides a series of requirements such as
low-voltage ride-through, grid compatibility and power test, bringing rare

opportunities to the Group's wind turbine business.

In 2014, the Group completed the assembling, commissioning and deliveries
of 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines in the amount of 50 sets to
Mahuangtan Project in Yumen City in Gansu, 20 sets to Xiapu Project in
Ningde City in Fujian, 50 sets to Jingyuan Project in Gansu and 75 sets to
Wuwei Hongshagang Project in Gansu in closing the sales of them, 195 sets in
total. In addition, a batch production of 172 sets of [.5MW wind turbines was
completed and they were delivered in closing the sales of them. Meanwhile,
the Group made deliveries of 103 units of 3MW wind turbine blades and 403
units of .5SMW wind turbine blades and closed the sales of them. In 2014, the
Group, by new installations of wind turbines totalling 708,500KWV, soared the
industry ranking from 21st in 2013 to | Ith, creating new high record.

Annual Report 2014 | CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Research and Development of Technology

In 2014, the research and development of 3MW permanent magnet
directdrive wind turbine were being conducted. In January 2015, we passed
the whole-turbine design review made by the expert panel of CALT and
could proceed prototype trial production. Besides its high power, this wind
turbine has innovative design on safety and maintainability, making readiness

for managing in attracting more customers’ appeal.

Production Management

In 2014, the Group carried on cost control rigorously with strengthening
analyses of wind turbine costing. By conducting on-site research, survey and
study, price searches and comparisons across the nation, the purchasing costs
of various components of wind turbines under the strategy of strengthening
quality control in maintaining quality were further reduced, thereby increasing
the profit margin. In enhancing the supply chain management, management
structure on eligible suppliers was established with system on conducting
appraisals and dynamic assessments of eligible suppliers where quality control
measures and terms on quality assurance were strengthened. Effective
measures on control of the quality in the batch production are the risk

management focus of the business in the industry.

In 2014, the Group established a safe production responsibility system in that
every staff member understood the security responsibility of his/her individual
position, firmly establishing safety awareness. There was no major safety

incident during the year.
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Energy Storage Business

Whilst maintaining the leading position in wind energy technology, the Group
has been actively nurturing a new core major business from the research and
development of a series of wind and solar energy storage products and a
series of distributed energy storage system products and extends the industrial
chain to a distributed energy renewal solutions by combining wind energy,
solar energy and energy storage subtly in providing customers with more

flexible and reliable energy solutions.

In May 2012, the Group initiated the research and development on graphene
materials and lithium battery of high storage capacity. Cooperative research
and development agreements were signed with international and domestic
renowned experts and teams in order to achieve mass production of high
quality graphene by leveraging on the graphene extraction technology
mastered by them and conducted research and development on new
graphene-based cathode material for batteries and high capacity lithium battery
in order to launch a series of energy storage products with an integrated
system based on high capacity lithium batteries. In 2013, international
renowned experts were invited by the Group to join the Energy Storage
Technology Research and Development Centre and effectively commenced
the research and development on graphene and energy storage system.
Material breakthroughs have been achieved in a number of technologies by

the Research and Development Centre.

= i

In 2014, the Research and Development Centre possesses a daily production
capacity of 5 kg graphene; realizes the pilot production of anode material; and
small batch production of electrolyte following passing its pilot production line.
Materials can be certified promptly on the battery production line, whereas
the electrolyte enhances the performance of materials in the battery. Initial

result in research and development emerges.
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11



12

BB mR DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMRH-—RNERREMERNBREESE
o W EMWERH RS ERARR -
MAGELEOARBRELE  BPERER
EMSFAER: G FEMNAEREME
HEMNE  BRMBAMERRARK —RITEE
BB HABREEED  ZELKEAR
EFIENEHETE  HETAREFHRER
B KRB FNEREHEZMRGEKE
% ARTEEEARERANELEERG
MEERRLBEE - PR BRANH
BRERHREESOHEES Shk LEER
—REBELMN 130% - AERESNEBATER
BB R —REMB S 30% ° ZEmE KN E
FE| AT R R R HI R - DR M AE
MERE AR ERE - EERREASIER -

RIEY - X% —REREEBHENELE
BREERERS  ZEGUEREAIEAE

STHBRAEY SESEEHER  BHH
B8 BESEMRE  EEFAMHAHE
E - AN EMFERED R REART RA
BYRE BUBRA%RE ARXEERBER
W o

TEMAEREE(EE) BRAA | 2014 F#

A lithium iron phosphate battery for application in wind turbines of variable
pitch has been developed and applied to 2MW excitation magnetic wind
turbines successfully. Applying this battery in assembling battery packs
of variable pitch could enable the packs not to be replaced for 5 years.
Meanwhile, the anode and cathode materials and electrolyte being researched
and developed in the laboratory have formed a dynamic lithium iron
phosphate battery of excellent performance, which will be applied to electric
cars and electric bicycles, developing a large-capacity energy storage system.
In relying on our edges in electrical control and system integration, a battery
management system with container-type energy storage system and a grid
connection device for the energy storage system have been developed, where
the lithium iron phosphate battery utilized in the energy storage battery has
a high energy ratio and long utilization life. Its energy ratio amounts to 130%
of those of commercial batteries for general usage, and the electrical energy
released by battery of the same weight is 30% more than an ordinary battery.
The product has been successfully utilized in the control system relating to
recovery of rocket parafoils in supplying electrical energy for the recovery of
satellites and rockets in its employment in military areas.

Meanwhile, another new type of street lighting system with complementary
wind energy and solar energy based on a lithium battery energy storage system
has been developed. The scope of applications of the system may extend to
unmanned communication base stations, data transmission by high voltage
wire towers, boundary outposts, islands, remote areas with no electricity, etc.
and may even connect to power grid for electricity generation. Currently,
the energy storage street lights with complementary wind energy and solar
energy have been installed in Chengde City, Pingquan County of Chengde
City, Zuidong Development Zone in Tangshan, and Shijiazhuang International

Shopping Mall, etc.
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Wind and solar power storage integration

The Group reached a strategic cooperation agreement with Wuwei City in
connection with wind and solar power storage integration projects, which
expressly put forward a policy of “mutual guarantee and joint development”,
stipulating that investors of non-local enterprises must guarantee purchase
of no less than 60% of the wind turbine equipment from the Group for the
sake of obtaining the resources relating to wind farms and photovoltaic power
stations i.e. offering us the priority on the development of the Group’s wind
and solar power equipment in the course of construction of wind farms
and photovoltaic power stations. The Wuwei municipal government has
formulated plan to build a 3 million KW wind farm. In 2014, the National
Development and Reform Committee approved the construction of phase |
of Mingin Hongshagang with a capacity of | million KW. The construction of
the wind farm has commenced, where the Group’s 2MW excitation magnetic
direct-driven generators are adopted for the 300,000 KW wind farm thereof.
[t follows that this wind farm will be the largest wind farm of the Group in
terms of the scale of wind turbines applied, which is of great significance to
enhancement of the production capacity rate as to the Group's existing 2MW
excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines.Meanwhile, Wuwei municipal
government has formulated plan to construct 190MW photovoltaic power
stations, of which the Group's share accounts for |00MW.

Annual Report 2014 | CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Electric vehicles market

The Group is committed to the exploitation of electric vehicle market which
has achieved significant breakthroughs. The key technologies in electric vehicles
include vehicle, motor, battery, control and driving system as well as charging
point system, where main technical bottlenecks that restrict the development
of electric vehicles are the performances of batteries and vehicle control

system, which, however, are the Group's advantages and features.

As the performance of high-capacity lithium batteries launched by the technical
team of the Company and CALT, and an interational expert reaches |60
Whkg, exceeding market level of 130 Whikg, and the “four in one” vehicle
control system launched by us could place motor driver, vehicle controller,
high voltage distribution box and DC power switching device in one
control box, the batteries feature comprehensive functions and high level of
integration. The electric buses installed with the Group's batteries and control
systems are capable of running over 300 km mileage per charge. Exactly
thanks to this edge, the Group has made major breakthroughs in promoting
electric vehicle market, in particular the market of electric buses and proven

track record.
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Wind Farm Operations

The Group's wind farm operations comprise a wind farm controlled and
operated by the Group: the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm of Liaoning
Benxi, installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
24,650KW; three wind farms invested and constructed by the Group: the
Jilin Tongyu wind farm of Jilin Longyuan, installed with 236 sets of 850KW
wind turbines with a capacity of 200,000KW; the Jiangsu Rudong wind farm
of Jiangsu Longyuan, installed with 100 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines with a
capacity of 150,000KW and the Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm of Inner
Mongolia Xinghe, installed with 55 sets of 900KW directdrive wind turbines
with a capacity of 49,500KW.

In addition, Energine Min Jian New Energy Investment Co,, Ltd, the Group's
associated company, formally engaging in offshore and land wind power
projects in eastern Fujian through its subsidiary, Yingkou Wind Power
Generation Co,, Ltd, secured market orders for the Group for the purchase

of 2MW directdrive wind turbine models produced by the Group.
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Business of New Materials

Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co, Ltd,, controlled and operated
by the Group, is a high-tech enterprise which specializes in the research
and development, manufacture, and sales of rare-earth permanent magnet
gearless traction machines for elevators. The “fi A& branded rare-earth
permanent magnet gearless traction machines and its driving control system
researched and developed by the company itself had filled the technological

gap of the domestic gearless elevator sector.
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Wuxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Generator Plant”),
the Group's associated company, is engaged in batch production of 900KW,
[.5SMW and 2MW generators. Its self-developed | 5MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind power generator, with application of many new technologies,
was awarded the First Prize of Outstanding Contribution to Science and
Technology Progress in 2011 by CALT. Therefore, the Group is equipped
with the internal capacity to supply core parts and components of wind
turbines, including blades and generators, thereby reducing its reliance on
upstream suppliers of the wind turbine supply chain for purchasing generators
and controlling the supply risk of the wind turbine supply chain and production
cost. In 2014, the Group entered into a contract of exporting 42 units of
900KW wind tribune generators to Netherlands.

Business of Automotive Component Parts

Automotive engine management systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a joint
venture, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic fuel

injection market with a stable market share, ranking the second nationwide
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and supplies to almost all major domestic automobile manufacturers. As for
export sales, its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in Europe and
North America.

PROSPECTS

Due to consumption of huge amounts of traditional energy and demand for
environmental conservation, there will be basically no changes as to the rapid
growth of China's wind energy industry in the future. Currently, serious air
pollution has been spread as a national issue and becomes a stimulating or
driving force to the China government. The National Energy Administration
stated that, during the “Thirteenth-Five” period, the wind power is expected
to gradually change the status of “alternative energy” and rises to pose as the
China main energy structural body in the future, providing an assurance on the

sustainable and healthy development of wind power.

As hazy weather and air pollution are worsening in China, China government
has increased the support for development of clean energy as well as policy
support thereon. The Group will in parallel to making every effort in large-
scale industrialized production of wind energy equipment, continue to expand
market share in reliance on our proven record of stable orders received,

ensuring a rapid growth in the Group's operational results in 2015 and beyond.
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Given that the Group has strong technical advantages in the application of
energy storage system and electric vehicle technology and operates in the
clean energy industry as staunchly encouraged by the supports from state
policies, the development of new technology and exploitation of new market
are focusing on the areas of wind and solar power storage integration as well
as electric vehicles intensively. The Group will strive to develop wind and
solar power storage integration and electric vehicles rapidly into new growth
points and core businesses of the Group in 2015 on the basis of established
market results by hinging on tremendous technical edges obtained in the said
sectors, grasping the opportunity of staunch assistances and supports from
China policies and devoting greater efforts in market exploitation with the aim
of re-addition of momentum in the course of the rapid growth of the Group's

operational results.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 22 employees (2013: 27 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 629 employees (2013: 558 employees)
in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee's performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,

discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 were
HK$1,714,807,000 (2013: HK$1,954,706,000), of which HK$ 17,044,000
(2013: HK$123,111,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31 December
2014 was 76% (2013: 103%).
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, certain assets of the Group of HK$7,779,000 (2013:
HK$9,312,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has issued a guarantee to a bank
in respect of a banking facility with an amount of HK$38,029,000 (2013:
HK$44,518,000) granted to an associate, of which HK$12,676,000 (2013:
HK$25,439,000) has been utilized, and has issued a guarantee to a third party
with an amount of HK$6,237,000 (2013: HK$6,258,000).

APPRECIATION

I 'would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 50, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988 and
1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director of
Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan
Industry Corporation in 1999, and President Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since
2002, he has served as Vice President of CALT. In parallel, he has also been a
Director of Aisino Co., Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for November 2000 to April 201 1. Possessing rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration, he was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 47, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy
Director of the President’s Office. In 1999, he, possessing extensive experience
in research and management, was appointed the Executive Director cum
Deputy General Manager of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited
("CAI"). He has been appointed as Managing Director (later becoming
Executive Director cum General Manager) of the Company since May 1999
and became the Vice-Chairman and Executive Director of the Company
on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 52, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 8 August 2010. Astrotech is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CALT. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He has also been a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Lijun, aged 42. Mr. Wang Lijun graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a Bachelor degree with major in Industrial Accounting
and National University of Defense Technology with a Master degree in
Management. He was qualified as an Accountant in PRC in May 1999. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Chief Accountant with Beijing CASC Wan
Yuan Science & Technology Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT.
He was appointed as Financial Controller of the Company on [0 May 2008.
He was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.
He resigned therefrom on | November 2014. He was also a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 46, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical
Industry Management with a Bachelor degree with major in Finance and
Accounting and BeiHang University with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He was qualified as a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1996. Since November 2005, he had
successively been the Chief Accountant with subsidiaries of the Company's
controlling shareholder, CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control
Engineering Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology. He was appointed as Financial
Controller and Executive Director of the Company on | November 2014. He

is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Shili, aged 41, graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor
degree in Law and obtained a Master degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined CALT in 1995, he has served as Auditor,
Deputy Director with the Second Division in Audit Office, Director of
Consolidated Finance Division, Deputy Chief, Chief of the Finance Department
and Chief Accountant. He was qualified as a Lawyer and as a Certified
Accountant in 1997 and a registered Tax Agent in 2007 in PRC. In parallel, he
has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 54, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT since 2010, possessing rich
experience in engineering consultancy, market exploitation, project operation
and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CASC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dechen, aged 75, graduated with a bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People’s Liberation
Army Military Engineering Institute), was a committee member of the 0th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the Assistant
Director, Director, Deputy Dean, Vice President, Deputy Secretary to the
Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern China Engineering College between
1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary of Education of the Ministry of China
Weapon Industry Ministry's National Mechanical Committee in 1985. He
served as Deputy General Manager of China North Industries Group in 1988
to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry Corp. in 1990 to 1996. He served
as General Manager and Secretary to the Party Secretary of China South
Industries Group Corp. from July 1999. From December 2003 onwards, he
acted as the Senior Consultant thereof. From July 2004 to December 2009,
he was an Independent Director of Aisino, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. With rich experience in strategic management and corporate
restructuring, Mr. Wang is the senior expert in Chinese advanced equipment
manufacturing industry and automotive industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active
advocate and experienced expert in China environmental protection and clean
energy field. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 23 January 2008, reappointed on 23 January 2011 and 23

January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years each.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 60, is a fellow of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). She is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She
has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and is well experienced
in both the equity and debt markets. She held various senior positions in
international and local banks and financial institutions and is currently a
controlling shareholder and the Managing Director of each of Asia Investment
Management Ltd. (“AIM") and Asia Investment Research Ltd. (“AIR"),
both companies are licensed corporations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO™). Ms. Kan is a licensed investment adviser under the
SFO and a registered officer of Lotus Asset Management Ltd. (through 31
March 2015) and of AIM and AIR. Ms. Kan is and was also an Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Regal Hotels International Holdings Ltd,,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Ltd., G-Vision International (Holdings)
Ltd. ("G-Vision"), Sunway International Holdings Ltd. (“Sunway"), Shimao
Property Holdings Ltd., Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company
Ltd., Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Ltd. (“Shougang Tech”) and
Sunac China Holdings Ltd. (“Sunac China”), all of which are companies listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and AVIC International Investments Ltd,,
a company listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. She retired
from those offices of Shougang Tech and G-Vision and Sunway on 8 June
2010, Il August 2011 and 28 February 2013 respectively and resigned from
that of Sunac China on 8 June 201 I. She was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2008 and reappointed
on 23 January 201 | and 23 January 2014 for a tenure of 3 years each.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 50, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital
Market, Asia of the Hong Kong Office of an international law firm since July
2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood,
Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan & Hartson,
Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on | September 2014. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 | and 23 January 2014

for a tenure of 3 years each.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li You, aged 50, senior engineer. Graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in Electronic Material and
Component Specialized Technology, he has studied courses in economics,
banking, finance and business management of engineering management
research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively
served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political
Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as
Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director in which he was
engaged in special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets integrative management work. In 2003,
he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department in
CALT, responsible for CALT's civil assets planning management, corporate
management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having
possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management,
he was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on |6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Xu Jianhua, aged 46, a senior economist, graduated from China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor's degree in law in
1992 and was a qualified lawyer in the PRC in 1994. He had been the
Deputy Director, Director and Deputy Chief of CASC's Human Resources
Department, and the Director of China Spacesat Technology Co., Ltd.
successively. He was the Executive Director, Vice President, of CAl from
March 2004 to April 2011 and the Vice President of Shanghai Aerospace
Holding (Hong Kong) Ltd. from April 2011 to April 2013 . He was appointed
as a Vice President of the Company on 8 November 2013. He resigned
therefrom on 25 August 2014.
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Mr. Chen Wei Nong, aged 58, senior engineer, graduated from Zhejiang
University with a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Processes and
Equipment. Since 1980, he successively served in Beijing Jian Hua Electronic
Instrument Factory of CALT as workshop craftsman, designer, Deputy
Director of Technology Division, Deputy Chief of Testing and Control Studio
and Deputy Factory Manager of the Factory. He served as Deputy Chief
Engineer of Yuan Wang Group from 1999 to 2003. From 2003 to 2010, he
successively served as General Manager Project Assistant, and Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd. He has served as Chief Engineer
of the Company since June 2008. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 50, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing LM Hi-Tech
Development Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of
the Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of

subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 48, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering.
From July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the
Manager of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing
Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant
of the Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President
of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Au-Yeung Keung, Steve. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Master of Science degree in Electronic
Commerce and Internet Computing, the City University of Hong Kong
with a LLM degree in Chinese and Comparative Law and the University of
London with a LLB degree with honours. He is a fellow member of both the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and HKICPA. He began
his career in being an auditing professional with an international accounting
firm and had rich and extensive experience in accounting, auditing, financial
management and company secretarial practice in Hong Kong and PRC prior to
joining the Company. Mr. Au-Yeung was appointed as the Company Secretary
and authorized representative of the Company on | June 2006. He has also
been the Head of Internal Audit of the Group.
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
("the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2014 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the

date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014

save the following.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed
term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election
at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the
retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in this regard to
ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2014 comprises the following Directors :

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Lijun (through 3/ October 2014
resigned from | November 2014)

Mr. Xu Jun (from | November 2014;
and appointed thereon)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 20 and 27 of
this Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect

including financial, business or family.

The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of
the year are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of a
conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of which
all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Four Board Meetings and an AGM were held during the year ended 3|
December 2014. The attendance record of each Director at the said meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below :-

HE/BTEERY
Number of Meetings Attended/
Held
Exgel BRREFEAE

Board Annual

Meetings General Meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 414 /1
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 4/4 I/
Mr. Li Guang 4/4 1/l
Mr. Wang Lijun (through 3/ October 2014)

4/4 1/l
Mr. Xu Jun (from | November 2014)

0/0 0/0
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Shili 34 o/
Ms. Zhang Jianhua 2/4 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dechen 3/4 I/
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 4/4 I/
Mr. Gordon Ng 4/4 I/

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper intemnal controls and

systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's business. In 2014, Mr. Han
Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang was the CEQ, of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During
the year ended 3| December 2014, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
in appointment of a sufficient number of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, representing one third of the Board, one of whom has appropriate

professional qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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HESEEREY Continuous Professional Development Programme
EERAERBEERUTINAS ME KL The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
ARRAAELER - TREFIBESZER-F  their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
—MERBNEELTRAIEEAS - Bk The participation by individual directors in the continuous professional
BECEERREDNDEIE - development programme with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of a listed company in 2014 is recorded in the table
below.
HEE
REEHER SHEBREY
Reading Attending
regulatory development
updates programmes
HiTES Executive Directors
BRI L4 Mr. Han Shuwang v v/
FHBRALE Mr. Wang Xiaodong v v/
FhEE Mr. Li Guang v v/
INERAE Mr. Wang Lijun
(ZFZFE—-mFE+H=1—H) (through 31 October 2014) v v/
FREE(H_F—mF+—H—H) Mr.Xuun (from | November 20/4) v v/
FUTES Non-executive Directors
Rkt Mr. Fang Shili v v/
REELL Ms. Zhang Jianhua v v/
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
FERELAE Mr. Wang Dechen v v/
L3 e. Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice v/ v/
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng v v/
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised five members and was chaired

by Mr. Wang Dechen, an Independent Non-executive Director, with Mr.
Li Guang, an Executive Director and CEO, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon

Ng, Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, a Non-

executive Director as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee updated on 30
March 2012 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main

duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors” and senior management's remuneration;

to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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Two Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2014. The attendance record of each member at the
Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year ended 3| December 2014

is set out below :-

HERY, BREERY
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Executive Director

Mr. Li Guang 2/2
Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Jianhua 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen (Chairman) 2/2
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 112

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
3| December 2014 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the

Remuneration Committee and is summarised below :-

(i)  reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 2013 with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 31

December 2014 is set out in Note | | to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 and

comprised five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang, the Chairman, with
Mr. Wang Lijun (through 30 October 2014), Mr. Xu Jun (from | November
2014), Mr. Wang Dechen, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon Ng as members.

The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee on 30 March 2012 which are aligned with the Code Provisions of

the CG Code. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows :-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEQO.

Two Nomination Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|

December 2014. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is

set out below -

HE/ BITEERE
Nomination Number of Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Held
Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Wang Lijun (through 31 October 2014) 2/2
Mr. Wang Dechen 112
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 112
Mr. Xu Jun (from | November 2014) 0/0

RS (= F—mFE+—HA—H)
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee up to 20 March
2015 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee and is summarised below :-

(i)  reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2015
AGM and considered succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the CEO.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
shareholders of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such

meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

During the vear, the Nomination Committee nominated Mr. Xu Jun to be
appointed as an Executive Director. The said nomination was approved by
the Board at the Board Meeting held on 23 October 2014. In accordance with
Article 99 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Xu will retire at the
2015 AGM. He will be re-elected therein.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members and is chaired by Ms. Alice

Kan, with Mr. Wang Dechen, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Fang Shili as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee updated on 30 March 2012
are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are as follows :-

0

(vi)

(vii)

to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to
the Board;

to review the contents of the representation letter to the external

auditor prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Company's financial controls, internal control and risk

management systems,

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's

response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and

to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
December 2014. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee Meetings is set out below :-

HERS BRERERE
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fang Shili 2/2

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Wang Dechen 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 12

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2014 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below -

() reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i) reviewed the reports from the Head of Internal Audit on assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
covering material controls for financial, operational, compliance and risk

management;

(i) reviewed and approved the internal audit plans for the period to 30
September 2015 from the Head of Internal Audit;

(iv)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions.
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Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and
is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr.
Wang Dechen, Mr. Wang Lijun (through 31 October 2014) and Mr. Xu Jun

(from | November 2014) as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee meeting
was convened during the year ended 3| December 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations of the senior management members as set out on pages
25 to 27 for the year ended 31 December 2014 were within the following
bands:

AE

Number of

individuals

Z 2 1,000,000 T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 5
1,000,000 7L 2 1,500,000 7 7T HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 |
6

ZRETE 2

BYINARELERRAEASEEZESA
SEZIEGREM BE_F-NF+_A
=t RULFEEREH  MEEIIMT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

year ended 31 December 2014 was set out as follows:

BRAMRHREZER Fees relating to services rendered
FET
HK$000
iR Audit services 3,050
i Hi g B AR S Interim review services 400
3450
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
55 and 56. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for
the foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concemn

basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 55 and 56.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders' investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be avoided,

and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control systems. The Group has an Internal Audit
Team reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team
performs regular independent reviews of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the
Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is submitted to the members of
the Audit Committee and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The
audit reports are then followed up by the Internal Audit Team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective internal control
systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the Group's assets and

identifying business risks.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance and risk management for the year under review and in view of
the above, it opined that the Group's internal control systems are effective,
adequate and in compliance with the Code Provisions on internal control of
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
|0 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
is provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding
voting by way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders'

meeting thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition (“the
Written Requisition”), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution”) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concemns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows -

Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd.
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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EXEHEE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on page 57 to 58.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO.7 cent (2013
: Nil) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014.

CHARITABLE DONATION

The Group donated a sum of HK$156,000 (2013: Nil) in respect of a teaching
support in Xiahe County, Gansu during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

are set out in note |16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2014, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 3|
December 2014 were HK$1,494,545,000 (2013: HK$1,267,904,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Lijun (through 31 October 2014; resigned from | November 2014)

Mr. Xu Jun (from | November 2014; and appointed thereon)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng
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The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement

and re-election under the Company’s Articles of Association.

Mr. Han Shuwang and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, by rotation, and Mr. Xu Jun, by
maturity, shall retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with the respective Article |16 and 99 of the Company's Articles

of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the “Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each of such
person’s interest in such securities or in any options in respect of such capital

were as follows:

gk 4= BREBD
54 Number Percentage
Capacity of shares of shareholding
(Bt 1)
(Note 1)
BEXEGNRES(ME2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
BARIER R AR (M7 3) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 3)
BEREAA 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%

Beneficial owner

Note:
I The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of
the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2014,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group

or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as stated in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, which are required to be disclosed in

accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Purchase of Wind Turbine Blades for Turbine
Assembling

It was announced on 29 December 201 | that two subsidiaries
of the Company, Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co. Ltd. (“IM Turbine Manufacture”) and Inner
Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. (“IM
Composite Material”) entered into a Framework Agreement
whereby IM Composite Material was and is to supply wind
turbine blades as to 900KW and 2MW to IM Turbine
Manufacture from time to time in accordance with the terms of
the Framework Agreement for the three financial years ended 3|

December 2014 (“Framework Agreement”).
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Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company's major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 0% shareholding. The supplies of wind turbine blades
by IM Composite Material under the Framework Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the maximum
purchase costs payable by IM Turbine Manufacture under
the Framework Agreement for the three years ending 3|
December 2014 amount to RMB199,700,000, RMB204,900,000
and RMB249,700,000 respectively. The total purchase costs
recognized and payable by IM Turbine Manufacture pursuant to
purchase agreement under the Framework Agreement amounted
to RMB22,222,000 for the year 2014 which was within the annual
cap of RMB249,700,000.

Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on 31 December 2013 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. (“IM New
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No. |
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia to IM Turbine Manufacture as industrial plant,
office, warehouse and associated facilities for manufacture of
turbine blades and other composite materials for a 2-year term
from | January 2014 to 31 December 2015 at an annual rental
and management fee of RMB5,181,413 in total.
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Since IM Composite Material is a connected person as aforesaid,
the leasing of property to them constituted continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The total
lease amount received by IM New Energy pursuant thereto for
the year 2014 amounted to RMB5,181,413 in total which was
equal to the agreed annual amount of RMB5, 181,413.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected

Transactions

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company
to conduct a review of the above transactions (A) and (B)
("Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The auditor has reported their factual
findings to the board of directors (the “Board") of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 3| December 2014 and confirmed that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered

into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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o RARGERERESEE In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the
HHR BE_T-—=F1t_A Board of Directors in writing that the Disclosed Continuing
St-RIEFEZREZHERE Connected Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014:

R5:

()

EYMIBIEMERS
EHERZERBEZHE
BERXHREANTELES
$fE o

==y
=

==
=

(1)

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
have not been approved by the Company's board of
directors.

Q) BEUEIBIEMEES (2)  nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
BEEREXERIEMRE that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
AT ARBEBRRAEZER respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
S B IRHEET - governing such transactions.

(3) B ERMMERBRERER (3)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the

FHESENS  BFLE
IEIEFAERSESHRE

continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing

has come to our attention that causes us to believe that

DERBRERHZ EB the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have
HERARTABEHRR-Z exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in
——F+ZAZThBEZ the previous announcement dated 29 December 201 | and

—ZF+_A=+—HH 31 December 2013 made by the Company in respect of

NP RBECREZFE
BERZNFE LREE -

each of the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions.
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(I1) Connected Transactions

(A) Contracting on Sourcing 3MW Wind Turbine Blade

(B)

Mould

[t was announced on 31 December 2013 and reported in 2013
Report of The Directors that IM Composite Material, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a Contracting Agreement with
Aerospace Material on 27 December 2013 in relation to
sourcing of 3MW wind turbine blade mould as commissioned
by Aerospace Material at a contract sum of RMBI 1,832,300
as mentioned in note 39(i)(a)(2) to the consolidated financial

statements. The turbine blade mould was delivered in 2014.

Since Aerospace Material and IM Composite Material are
connected persons of the Company as aforesaid, the contracting
on sourcing 3MW wind turbine blade mould by IM Composite
Material under the Contracting Agreement constituted a

connected transaction under Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules.

Loans from Shareholder or Fellow Subsidiary

There were loans advances from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co. Ltd.
(“"ASTF") or from ASTF (with guarantee from CALT) to Beijing
Energine as set out in note 39(i)(a)(1) and (2) to the consolidated
financial statements. Since CALT and CASC are intermediate
major shareholder and ultimate major shareholder, of the
Company respectively and ATSF is a CASC's subsidiary, the loans
were connected transactions yet they were exempted from
requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders’ approval
by virtue of interests relating to the loans being of commercial
terms or better to Beijing Energine and no security made for the

loans under Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules.
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The above connected transaction or continuing connected transactions plus
the connected transaction on supply of wind turbine blades to Aerospace
Material by IM Composite Material under a Commissioning Agreement
disclosed in 2013 Annual Report as mentioned in note 39()(a)(3) to the
consolidated financial statements are confirmed that they have complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing

Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 79% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 20% of the Group's tumnover.

For the year ended 3| December 2014 purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 35% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately 12% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution would be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, if eligible, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 179,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 3| December 2014, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

B e 2014 2013
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
= Turnover 5 2,699,950 1,329,644
HEKA Cost of sales (2,436,675) (1,305,567)
E7 Gross profit 263,275 24,077
HAb A Other income 7 43,658 22789
H Al B g1 Other gains and losses 2,751 147,185
HE R HRA Selling and distribution expenses (114,583) (68,670)
THRER Administrative expenses (143,503) (154,275)
PR Finance costs 9 (93,136) (110,894)
iy UNCIE S Share of results of associates (3,863) (10,886)
ElhaEhEES Share of results of joint ventures 139,681 182,112
AR A Profit before taxation 10 94,280 31438
BIE Taxation 12 (1,296) (4,049)
REE 5T Profit for the year 92,984 27,389
Hin2HE (R WA Other comprehensive
(expense) income:
TeEHIRERHCER ltem that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
—HEE25ERES: — exchange differences
ZERER arising on translation to
presentation currency (6,408) 59,200
BERAIREEH I BERE AR ltem that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
—HEHLESREER — reclassification adjustment
B AR upon sale of
available-for-sale
financial asset - 14,881
FAZERALE Total comprehensive income
for the year 86,576 101,470
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE—F—MFT-A=1T—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

B e 2014 2013
NOTES FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FRUTALEERN(EE) : Profit (loss) for the year
attributable to:
ZA/NIE 2N Owners of the Company 90,894 39,022
FEPE 1 R 2 Non-controlling interests 2,090 (11,633)
92,984 27,389
AT ATEEZERA Total comprehensive income
(Fx )% (expense) attributable to:
RRRHER A Owners of the Company 84,733 110,010
JEEHI RS Non-controlling interests 1,843 (8,540)
86,576 101,470
FRERN-EX Eamings per share - Basic 14 HKcents 2.29 &l  HK cents 0,985/l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REF—AFF+=—A=+—H

At 3/ December 2014
i 2014 2013
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FREBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 15 148,694 128,720
M - BE REE Property, plant and equipment 16 372,854 391,436
WENE - BER Deposits paid for acquisition of
BRI N 2ES property, plant and equipment 10,810 9,084
B Goodwill |7 2,004 2,004
BVEE Intangible assets 18 52,798 30,701
& Lﬁlﬁﬁﬁ Deferred tax assets 30 1,937 2,009
’a‘f NG 5 Interests in associates 19 455,600 473,285
BEbE R Interests in joint ventures 20 1,279,855 1,319,549
JEW—F'EJA RN Amount due from a joint venture 25 108,813 —
AtHESREE Available-for-sale investment 21 1,521 —
2,434,886 2,356,788
mEEE Current assets
& Inventories 22 485,730 414,130
%%&E{ﬁﬁﬂﬁk Trade and other receivables 23 1,491,795 1,599,769
i NG Amounts due from associates 24 592,162 57,428
s —REa **/m\%m Amount due from a joint venture 25 30,347 135,074
BEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 7,779 9,312
RTEFRRS Bank balances and cash 26 862,568 631,817
3,470,381 2,847,530
RBEE Current liabilities
g%&ﬁﬁﬂlfﬁ%’& Trade and other payables 27 1,461,740 858,384
A B & A B Amounts due to associates 24 248,841 318,044
ERN—FEa %ﬁ%?f\ Amount due to a joint venture 25 6,303 6,278
BB Government grants 31 1,173 1,068
FER TR Taxation payable 2,537 1,967
RIEREE Warranty provision 28 74,032 35,937
R—EREIHZ &R Borrowings - amount
due within one year 29 985,916 890,359
BEHEAE Obligation under a finance lease 32 19 —
2,780,661 2,112,037
RBEEFHE Net current assets 689,720 735493
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REFE—mF+=A=1+—H
At 31 December 2014

= 2014 2013
NOTES FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EEABERRBAR Total assets less
current liabilities 3,124,606 3,092,281
FnBaE Non-current liabilities
R—FRIBzER Borrowings - amount
due after one year 29 728,891 1,064,347
EERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 30 20,831 20988
BEHEAIE Obligation under a finance lease 32 276 —
BIFHE Govemment grants 31 33,879 39,792
783,877 [,125,127
2,340,729 1,967,154
EX Kkt Capital and reserves
B Share capital 33 436,900 396,900
1 Reserves 1,830,878 1,496,889
RRABHEE AEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,267,778 1,893,789
JEPR I MR A Non-controlling interests 72,951 73,365
ERAE Total equity 2,340,729 1,967,154
FIRESTE | 9VEZGAMBRE  IRES The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 179 were approved
SR -_E-—RE=-A_+HHAERERE ¥H and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and are
NTEERREE signed on its behalf by:

BRI £
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEF HITEF
Executive Director Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

AEEREARS
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bk EEEH ot
1] 1] Bt
BE  BHRE  BEEE  Property Aset  EiGE  EEEE  ZiEE a8 Non-
Share  Special Share  revaluation  revaluation  Exchange  General Accumulated controlling fg
capital - reseve  premium  reserve  reseve  reserve reserve losses Total  interests Total
it it it it it it TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HSOD HEOD  HSIW MW HSY HSOY HSW SO AW MW SO
(1) (k)
(Mot ) (NoteJ)
R=F-=5-3-H At | anuary 013 36300 175 248304l 139 (14881) 268557 513 (156278 1783907 5728 1981193
REEEN(6R) Proft s for the year = = = = = = = B o (e I
BESHISEEL EREE  Dohage diferences afsng on ranstion
fo presentafion curengy = = = = = 507 = = 507 3% 500
HETHEESREER Reclssficaton adustment upon s of
kR avalable-forsd fnancel asset - - - - 4881 - - - [488] - [488]
REFRE(FR)NAGE  Totd comprehensie (expene) ncome
forthe year = = = = 4881 5107 = By 110010 (6540) 01470
Wi -FsEkE Acquston of actonel nferet
LR of an exstg susidry = = = = = = = (1) (g (03m) (050
BERMBAREESM  Diidend padtonon-controling nteress
Eahe ofasubsday = = = = = = = = = (1665) (1665)
BIFHE-FHEAT Deemed diposlofa subsiday = = = = = = = = — (I3 (10334
g Traner - - - = = = 492 (14922 = = =
RIB-ZEtZAZ1-8 Al Decemberd0N3 906900 17854 2483141 139 = J4hHd 60435 (1492304 1,893,789 7335 1,967,154
RERRT Proft o he year - - - - - - - 90,894 90,894 2,00 92,984
BESHISHELEREE  Dohage diferences afsng on tanstion
fo presentafion curengy - - - - - (8,161) - - (6,161) (M1) (6,408)
FERREMAEE Totd comprehensie ncome for the year - - - - - (6,161) - 90,894 84733 184 86,576
o) lsue of sheres 40,000 - N5 - - - - - 15 - 10
DETMEATEAE  Didend pad toroncontolng mierests
EARE of asbsidary - - - - - - - - - (2.57) (2.7)
-4 Trander - - - - - - 916 (12916) - - -
RZF-METZA=1-R A3l December 014 42690 17554 21307 139 - 8] B (141432) 22607778 nes 33407
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE—F WF1T=A=1"HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014
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Note

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company and the aggregate amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred
from other reserves pursuant to the Group's reorganisation on || August
1997.

Included in general reserve is reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior

years' losses or (i) expand production operations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Government grants recognised

KREWF 2 A FEZE RS Gain on fair value changes

REFERE
RIEHE—RMBLEZ
%%ﬁﬁﬂ%@

RELER ¥ E Q7
B W
HE— R E D A 2 s
R B AR BRIR
ZREBR
HER—HRE L EER
2z
HE—HAHfHESR
BE Wk
HRYE - BE L&A
ZREBR

of investment property
Allowance for obsolete inventories
Reversal of unrealised profit from
deemed disposal of a subsidiary
Unrealised profit in an associate
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Gain on deemed disposal of interest
in an associate
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Gain on disposal of interest in
a joint venture
Gain on disposal of an
available-for-sale financial asset
Impairment losses recognised

in property, plant and equipment

eSS

E-AFEF=A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$'000
94,280 31438
(9,843) (8941)
93,136 110,894
3,863 10,886
(139,681) (182,112)
4,853 7370
30,315 33,380
(10,974) (2.839)
(887) (9,382)
4,716 29,805
- (7.384)

7,580 —

53 35
(4,932) —
(20) —

455 764
- (132,076)
- (3,633)

- 4841
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BE—ZTWFEF=A=1—HILFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEECEBILE Operating cash flows before movements
AEHHERE in working capital 72,974 (116,954)
FEEM Increase in inventories (81,770) (99,228)
B 5 I H UK 2 380 Increase in trade and other receivables (166,312) (558,884)
FEURE & N R Z (BN)E4A  (Increase)decrease in amounts due
from associates (534,928) 141,409
FBR—H&EtERIAD Decrease in amount due
from a joint venture 1,490 12,074
BHREMENTRZEM Increase in trade and other payables 594,714 433,172
FEfTHE = D\ AR Z R Decrease in amounts due to associates (68,127) —
R —FaEtER &M Increase in amount due to a joint venture 46 6278
ol f’}%ﬁﬁzi‘ﬁﬂ Increase in warranty provision 38,216 10,470
AREERE Cash used in operations (143,697) (171,663)
ERAER Income taxes paid (1,569) (545)
RETDRAREFH Net cash used in operating activities (145,266) (172,208)

TEMRERER(EE) BRAR | 2014 FR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-T—FF+-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

B sE 2014 2013
NOTE FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REED Investing activities
HERA SR EERPIIEH Proceed from disposal of interest
in joint venture 273,906 .
HE—RBHBA RSN Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary 20 —
BECEREZ RS Dividend received from joint ventures 173,387 180,699
BEE N REL 2 I8 Dividend received from associates 9,716 27,930
Yo BR 8 T4 B Receipt of govemment grant 5,303 34,383
BEUFE Interest received 3,810 5,755
HEME  BEREZBEAMER  Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2,909 7,382
RREEARITER Release of pledged bank deposits 1,533 15,635
BERTVEE Purchase of intangible assets (22,309) —
BEVE  BERR Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (15,605) (30,459)
WEME BB R Deposits paid for acquisition
REEMES of property, plant and equipment (7,700) (781)
HEEREMFE Purchase of investment properties (4,757) (60,957)
HE—RAHEESR Proceeds on disposal of an
BEMBR available-for-sale financial asset — 122,481
EBE-—HEERAIZRESR Guarantee deposit repaid
to a joint venture —_ (22,573)
Wi —mM B DR 2 EIMER Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary —_ (10,375)
B E — M E A R Net cash outflow from deemed
LB EE disposal of a subsidiary 40 - (9,718)
HE—BEECEERRERG Transaction cost directly attributable
AT TN to the disposal of a joint venture - (1,446)
RETHELEZELTE Net cash from investing activities 420,213 257,956
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

B e 2014 2013
NOTE FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$000
METH Financing activities
MBAER New loans raised 669,007 1,021,402
EEBR Repayment of borrowings (903,281) (846,477)
BRI Interest paid (93,136) (110,894)
EENLI=INGIE et Il Dividend paid to non-controlling
IRERMRE shareholders of a subsidiary (2,257) (5661)
BITHRFTIS K Proceeds from issue of new shares 300,000 —
BITHREEZRAX Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of new shares (10,744) —
EEREHERE Repayment of obligations under
finance lease (95) =
METH(TA)ELZREFEHE  Net cash (used in) from
financing activities (40,506) 58,370
ReRReSEWEINER Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 234,441 143410
INEEREE 2 ZE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (3,690) 26014
FNZRERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 631,817 462,393
FRZHASREEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
(RITEBRREAR) the year, representing bank
balances and cash 862,568 631,817

TEMRERER(EE) BRAR | 2014 FR
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BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech
Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which holds 60.64% interest in the Company. Astrotech
is wholly-owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology
("CALT"), a state-owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of
the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are companies established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC™.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public company with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are
located.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new interpretation and amendments to HKFRSs (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.



2

e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERHE] REETEEME
REER ( [FEMBRE

EAH]) @

AEE Y EIRAKAATERME =
AR ARETERAMBRE?

al:

BB EHRE
ZERIZE 9 5%
N
AR 1457
N
ZERIIZE 15 9%
N
R || 57
(1BETA)
B g £
£ 1 5E(BFTR)
B g £
F 63N
B gt AR
F 38R (BETA)
B g £
F 65N
R
F 41 F(BFTR)
B g £
F 195 (BETR)
B g £
F27H(BFTR)
BB 5 22 A
F 105N
R
F 28R (BETA)

SRITA

ERRERP?

KEEFPEH
2N

WRREEEHZ
a2 bR

BABE

ERBHEIER
TEZEIES

BEEEN
ERYR

REEEEBE
DARAERR
ZEERERL
AAS

x
%

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS |1

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS |6

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS |6

and HKAS 4|

Amendments to HKAS |9

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS [0
and HKAS 28

Financial instruments'

Regulatory deferral accounts’

Revenue from contracts
with customers’
Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions’
Equity method in separate
financial statements®
Sale and contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate
or joint venture®
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS [0,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Applying the consolidation

exception’

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 201 | - 2013 cycle*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after
| January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with limited
exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’” (FVTOCI) measurement

category for certain simple debt instruments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

0 All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend

income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

J With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have

occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Annual Report 2014 | CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

I



74

e I AR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R —F—FE+=—F=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 2014

23

FER ] R EETEBME
BEEL ( [FEEMHBRE
EH]) @

EEMBRERAFEH [&MIA]
(%)

o —REFNFETRERATRKRSE
BRAERAN =B PeTH’
Ble BRATRYPETRIERN
RPBHESAETANEEN
FRERTAH P TIANT AR
DRFEHM e RENIFTB
TR B R B AR B MY AR ot
oh o mEMRAHE BBEE SR
DT R 7 1 R RIERAR » $3h 3%
SR FEBEEPNE - BF
Ml ABHERRRE R LN
BICRBERTE -

FRMBHRERLEISHE [REEFE
LoPA ON

RZT—NELA - BEHBRELER
FISHEBMILREY T —HE—#4ERE
BE - UERREEPERMBA - &
BT BREERE |5 RAEME - B
RERLANRARRES EEEE
FTERIE 185 WA ] - BB S ERIE
ISR EE R I RAAEN2E -

TEMABREK(EE) BRAA | 2014 F#

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

J The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”’

In July 2014, HKFRS |5 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS |5 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’,
HKAS |1 "Construction Contracts” and the related Interpretations

when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step |1 Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2 Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract
Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS |5, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
I5 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 5.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
I'5 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning | January 2018 and | January 2017
respectively. The application of these two standards may have significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that

effect until a detailed review has been completed.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment property which is

measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS |7 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

0 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

0 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E—mEFZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

0 has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement

with the investee; and
0 has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes" and HKAS 19

“Employee benefits” respectively;

0 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the

accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If; after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate

is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate’s and the joint venture's
accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint

venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

when the equity method is discontinued.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

J the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;
0 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

J the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has
been delivered.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FESHEE @)

0 BERRE

BREEL (D EAREEE)ZY
X BERRERERARER R
ERRFREBE(INE) N BBR
EIN

WEVEBNYE  BBERREB M
Al F HIA A B AOA ME IR B BCRR
EfEFAEAFR 2 RSREERER
AR ERFEY  MREERFTENA
REREMREN B2 ENESY
LRBAHERAE -

fEEE  HERTHARZERIRER
BIERIRRF DHEAARNETAE ERR
EERIE AKAREEREAK W
ZHERMXRGAREAE  TEERE
AEBEHBRRAERMMEZBEMA -
ERIRTINER KA ERTE AR E
PRENE - BERSEIBEEEHR -
ZEREZHERBEARARTAR
B R fn ik R E M R A EAER 2 B
-
REREMERANEERARHAH
FHNEREBEEMRROREETS
B WTEaERERNERER
R EEAAE ARERHEREA
ERFHMEEFNRRERITNE -

0% BERREREINHERLE
BHMREERZEERTEELRRE
ERNEEIEER - WX - BERR

HERERRELZBRRHERSRK
BREERAEEEER  TRNHER
RIBERA °

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease terms, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease

terms and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and

development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:

J the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it

will be available for use or sale;

0 the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

0 the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

J how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic

benefits;

0 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible

asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is

incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E—mEFZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates and
joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial

position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses

in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattemn in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due
from associates, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of asset revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss of financial assets

below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

J breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables are
considered uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the

impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of asset revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment |oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equrty instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in

the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amount due to a joint venture and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured

at their fair values are subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue

recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values

of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows

(where the effect of the time value of the money is material).
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities which are stated at
functional currency of the respective group entity other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(ie. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed

to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,
are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 3| December 2014, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$2,004,000 (2013: HK$2,004,000). Details of

the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note |7.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment in

wind energy related products segment

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount represents the higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use is calculated by estimating the future cash
flows expected to be generated by the assets based on a 5-year budget
approved by the management at a discount rate of 4%, which reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the operation of the assets. Taking into account the value
in use of the assets, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
no impairment is considered necessary. As at 3|1 December 2014,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment in wind energy
related products segment is HK$194,792,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$208,706,000).
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4.

ET P HEEMZEEKRIER 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
#Er 2) UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT (Continued)
HEE B RE Estimated impairment of trade receivables
EEREEEATNNESE  AeEEe When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
EZEGEERKBSRE - BESRESR into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
B AE EREEESREEYRE the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
ERAE(NISERAGTE 2 BRF carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
Vg AR BE S RE(RBEER (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
EEZRAREEER)EENEETE o at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
HERERBES TS LRTESTESE 8 interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
A eELrEAREEERE - R - — cash flows are less than expected, a matenial impairment loss may arise.
#+-A=+—HB BH5EKZE As at 3| December 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables
T {8 /5 805,945,000 T(Z T — =& : is HK$805,945,000 (2013: HK$531,832,000), net of allowance for
531,832,000 7T ) (&R Mk R EE B E doubtful debts of HK$67,062,000 (2013: HK$66,701,000).
67,062,000/ TT(ZF—=4F : 66,701,000
AIL)) °
%%gﬁ 5. TURNOVER
REBNAEFHLEFHNMT ¢ An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:
2014 2013
FAET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HERNEERHEER Sales of wind energy related products 2,398,898 136,584
EminE Sales of goods 275,607 161,150
HERBRSELZEN Sales of electricity from operation of
wind power field 25,445 31,910
2,699,950 1,329,644
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For the year ended 3| December 2013

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

In prior year, there are 5 reportable and operating segments, namely
Wind Energy Related Products, Operation of Wind Farm, Rare-Earth
Permanent-Magnet Products (“REPM Products™), Trading of Materials
and Telecommunication Business. During the year, the CODM

reassessed the current business segments.

The Group developed new products on energy storage and its related
products during the year. The CODM considered it as a separate
reportable and operating segment and hence the Energy Storage and
Related Products becomes the new reportable and operating segment
under the Group's business development.

In addition, the Group ceased its business of trading of materials during
the vear since the Group has shifted its focus to the wind energy and its
related products. Therefore, it is no longer a reportable and operating

segment of the Group.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments for the year

under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows:

Wind Energy Related Products

Operation of Wind Farm

REPM Products

Telecommunication Business

Energy Storage and
Related Products

— Manufacture and sales of
wind energy related products

— Sales of electricity from operation
of wind power field

— Manufacture and distribution of
elevator motors

— Development, manufacture and
distribution of communication
products, [TS, broadband
systems, equipment and
accessories

— Distributed energy renewal
solutions by combining wind
energy, solar energy and

energy storage

Information regarding these segments is presented below.
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EEHR @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SRS RS Segment revenue and results
AEFRRERRED By LEmy The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by
BAWWT operating and reportable segment.
BE-—ZEZ-—NE+-A=1t—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2014
BER
EhEH FRER
EBER BiEE Bt Energy ENEH
WindEnergy ~ Operation E8ER Storage Tele- UEEY
Related of Wind REPM  andRelated communication Trading of G
Products Farm Products Products Business Materials  Consolidated

f&x T&x ] fEx - i fEn
HKSOO  HKSORO  HKSODO HKSODO HKSOOO HKSUOD  HKSUD

1] TURNOVER
e External sales 1,398,898 15,445 45,904 75,074 54,629 - 1,699,950
| RESULT
EE Segment resu 18,134 (14) 483 3989 [ - 113,085
FARATER Unalocated corporate expenses (102,764)
REAREMUA Unallocated other income 19,702
i Finance coss (93,136)
Bhastiss Share ofresult ofajont venture

-FEAERH - unalocated portion 156,506
REMELTELN Inerease n fa vlue of investment property 887
AR Profitbefore taxation 94,00
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6. DELSE 2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
SEKNREE (Z) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
BE-E—Z=F+-A=1+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2013

#R
ENE ] BER
EEED A5Es #t Erergy e
Vind Erergy Operaton SiEn Storege Tele: UiEY
Related of Wind REPM andRelated  communication Trading of e
Products Fam Products Products Business Matends ~ Consolcated

7T 7 7T 7T 7T T 7Er
S SO0 S0 S SO0 HS S0

g3 TURNOVER
Hhge Extemal sales 1136564 31910 44665 = 3700 82785 1,329 644
S | RESULT
it Segment resut (10393D) 13066 (2420) - (16018) 509 (108802)
AESRLTER Unaflocated corporate expenses (99275)
FEAREHRA Unallocated other income 4702
BisiA Finance coss (1108%4)
Eha2tsis Share ofresls of ot ventures

-AAEAR - urellocated portion 190816
HETHAESBERNE  Gan on dsposalof avalabledorsale fnancil aset 3B
figRgtsls Gan on disposdl of 2 joint venture 132076
RENRATEEN Incease in fa value of nvestment property 938
BitaER Proft before taeton 31438
DIEHE R BRI R TR (5 Segment results represent the profit (loss) before taxation earned by
B) TREGERAN  REMENTE each segment, excluding finance costs, fair value gain on investment
W2 REPEEZEMALhERE ., properties, share of results of joint ventures which cannot be allocated,
PA R 348 4 TR U A R o 48 5 BE A unallocated other income and corporate expenses such as central
TER WIETHRAREZETS - administration costs and directors’ salaries. Share of loss of associates
JE (B A% N B 5 483,863,000 (= & of HK$3,863,000 (2013: HK$10,886,000) and share of loss of joint
— = : 108860005 L) REMLA KL ventures of HK$16,825,000 (2013: HK$8,504,000) were allocated to
8 48250008 T(— & — = F : reportable segments. This is the measure reported to the Group's
8,504,000 BT D EE R ME DI o V5t Executive Directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
BEARESEERTGEmE MRS assessment of segment performance.

ERTEF2ROE -

112 +EMXBFRER(E£E) ERAF | 2014 FH
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Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segment.

At 31 December 2014

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

RER
EDEH EEER
EEER BEEE Bt Energy EHRE
WindEnergy ~ Operation E8ER Storage Tele- UEEY
Related of Wind REPM  andRelated communication Trading of G
Products Farm Products Products Business Materials ~ Consolidated
-2 74 4 -2 iz 4 -4
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
& ASSETS
AREE Segment assets 1,775,860 567,916 26,436 102,850 52,593 - 3,525,685
n-Faetiks Interestn 2joint venture 1,236,760
AESRATEE Unalocated corporate asets 1,142,852
FREELE Consolidated tota assets 5,905,267
af LIABILITIES
ARAE Segment iablties 1,676,021 59,156 18,554 60,029 16,875 - 1,840,641
FARATEE Unallocated corporate iebltes 1,123,897
FaBELE Consoldated totd labiltes 3,564538
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6. NEEHE #

PEAERER (&)
R-B2-=5+ZA=+-H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

At 31 December 2013

7
BN%E RER
RER BiAgs Bt Erergy ERE
VWind Fneryy Operaton SRR Storege Tele HEs
Rekted of Wind REPM  andReled  communication Tradng of 8
Products Fam Products Products Busness Matenals Consolcated

7T 7 7T 7T 7T 7T 7Er
HS SO0 S0 S SO0 HS S0

i ASSETS

AREE Seqment asets 21674% 59280 38517 = 5414 = 2853415
RRELECER Iterestin 2joint venture (259451
G IS Unallocated corporate asets 1091452
GREESRE Consolidated total assets 5204318
8 LIABILITIES

LT Segment iablties 1112015 il 12667 = 460 = 140253
AMARATEE Unelocated corporate i 19%911
GABRER Consolidated total fabilties 3037164

RERNBEREDENERER

o BRAUNENRAEREEER
RENEREMEREE(TEH
AT ﬁﬁ&fﬁé—a AR

ESOIRERESLE -

i 17 P LZET iy %Ei&%%

Bk

o BRAUNEZETEERRERE
BEN MEREIRZRE

o

TEMABREK(EE) BRAA | 2014 F#

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

J all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interests in joint ventures which cannot be allocated, investment
properties and other financial assets that comprise of mainly bank
balances and cash. Goodwill is allocated to reportable segments

as described in note |17; and

J all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
certain borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax

liabilities.
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EEHR @) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HipoEass Other segment information
R=-B-—-NE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014
B%R
EVEH F8ER
H#ER BREe Bt Energy EEELS
WindEnergy ~ Operation E8ER Storage Tele- HHER
Related of Wind REPM  andRelated ~ communication Trading of AR b1
Products Farm Products Products Business Materials ~ Unallocated  Consolidated

i fir fér fir fér i fér i
HKs 00 HKS 00 HKS 000 HKs 00 HKs 000 HKs o0 HKS 100 HKs 00

BEEAEARAIIEE  Amountsincuded nthe mesure of segment

AARARLLE: proft orlos o seqent asets
5 RERRERE Adetion of proprty,plant and equpment 13,236 1,358 3 - 1,082 - 2 16,095
R EGTH Deprection ofpropety,pnt and equipment 14749 1341 %l - 1,163 - 195 0315
REFSAE Alowance for obslete ventoris 1300 - 3478 - - - - 4T
WENE BERREZER  Lossondiposd of propery,plnt and equipment 5 - - - - - - 5
HEEDT R Iferets i asocites 9 330,409 - - - - - 455,600
HRgtsEa hieressinjont vrtures 1,576 41519 - - - - 1,136,760 1,179,855
EiEBE0REE) R Shere of o) proft of asoctes (8126) 4263 - - - - - (3063)
Ehastz(BE)aT Shere of {oss) roftof it ventures (1595) (9,30) - - - - 156,506 139,681
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6. DELSE 2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
HipyEss (&) Other segment information (Continued)
R=B—=F+=-A=+—~H At 31 December 2013

7
BiEE FBER
HER BisEs iag ety EEE
Wind Frergy Operaon EhER Storege Tek- iHER
Related of Wind REPM adReated  communicaion Trading of FIAR
Products fam Products Produds Busiess Meterias Unalocated

it &1 it &1 it &1 AT

S0 HS S0 HS S0 HS S0

BEEENRRA Amounts ncuded i the mezsureof

B ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ@ seqment proftorlos o segent et
0% BERR Addtion of propery,plnt and equipment 2483 1% n = 239 = 0
Ve e ﬁﬁ Depredation of property,plant and equipment l663) 1319 106l = nm = 2l
EI5ENZ HER Impaiment ossrecognsed on

R AERR property, plntand equpment 484 - - - = = =
BEEEARIGY Inpaiment oss recognied

HEER 1 st of rade recelables = = T# - - - -
RERaRE Alowance for obslte metores 549 = 437 - - - -
LENE  ARREECEE Lo ondiposd o property plart and equpment (%) = - - - - =
N L 3 Iteests  assoctes 134014 w7 = = - - -
ReEbE ER hieressinjont vrtures 5176 5092 = - - - 159451
EiHE R (ER )i Shareof (o) proft of asodates (19639) 813 = - - - -
EiAR02(BR)EN Shareof (o) proft of it ventures (6463 () = = = = 19016

e
Conslicated
i
HS0w

30459
3330

il

T
B8
()
s
120956
(10889
B

TEMABREK(EE) BRAA | 2014 FH
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of

the PRC.

() The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed

R below:
2014 2013
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$000
R E b i@ Other regions of the PRC 2,683,436 1312513
BB Hong Kong 2,458 4246
H United States of America 13,743 ['1,786
Hit Others 313 1,099
2,699,950 1,329,644

(iy REEMEMNESBEHAEEER
BEERHNERFEOT

(i) Information about the Group's non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

FRBEEREME

Carrying amount

of non-current assets

2014 2013

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

HR B At [ Other regions of the PRC 2,432,722 2,354,409
B Hong Kong 2,164 2,379
2,434,886 2,356,788
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6.

PEEHE @)

FHREEEFEHN

ERMEAAREERE 0%MEFRE
BEREREMT -

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over

10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2014 2013

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

ZEA Customer A! 540,198 697,376
ZEB! Customer B! 467,725 419,306
EFC Customer C! 453,965 N/A?

' BOEEHEEREESR

2 AEEXEHASEREEEARK
BB 10% - Bt - BERFPEEATE
AN/AL ©

Hig A

Hi g A B -

BT B (P )
HERA
FMEBA
—RITHER
— BT -HaELE BN

: Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
sales of the Group, thus, disclosure for the specific customers is not
applicable (“"N/A").

7. OTHER INCOME

2014 2013
FET T
HKS$’000 HK$000

Other income comprises:
Government grants (Note) 13,009 5035
Rental income 9,840 5,608

Interest income

— bank balances 3,810 5,755
— advance to a joint venture 6,033 3,186

st : £ 2864300008 T(Z T — = &
613,000 7t ) 35 BB /e A 3k
BEVE BERREMETAS
Bz B (MizE31) - £% 10,555,000
BIL(ZF — =4 : 22260007 7T )
R BT, B R E A E W
TAEE 2 HB(HE3) - T
SHI8II00ETL(ZE—=F:
2,196,000 7 7T ) 35 B B 7% 75 # I EX
B EETRR

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

Note:  An amount of HK$643,000 (2013: HK$613,000) represents subsidies
granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the
purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 31). An amount of HK$10,555,000 (2013: HK$2,226,000)
represents subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC government/
authorities for telecommunication business (Note 31). The remaining
amount of HK$ 1,811,000 (2013: HK$2,196,000) represents subsidies
received from the PRC tax authorities on Value Added Tax reduction.
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
BIELER —HEEBE R A EE 2l  Gain on deemed disposal of
interest in an associate 4,932 =
REMERTEZBH W= Gain from change in fair value of
investment property 887 9,382
& — M E A 82 e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 20 —
EHERE R (B8 e F Net exchange (loss) gain recognised (2,580) 2,893
REHEHRBRZRERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables (455) (764)
HEME  BELIREER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (53) (35)
HER—HaEhFEER WH Gain on disposal of interest
in a joint venture —_ 132,076
HEHBESREE KR Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial asset —_ 3,633
2,751 147,185
AR A 9. FINANCE COSTS
2014 2013
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$000
.8 Interest on:
—ARRFABBERZRITR — bank and other loans wholly
Hith &R repayable within five years 89,480 106,490
—PMERAFATREEZRITR — bank and other loans not wholly
Hith &5 repayable within five years 3,640 4,404
—BRAFARBHERZ — finance lease wholly repayable
MEHE within five years 16 —
93,136 110,894
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10. Bty F

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
A& N 2 PR Profit before taxation has been arived
THRARER : at after charging:
EE0 Fa Directors’ emoluments 6,985 6,604
HE THRA Other staff costs 83,627 74,700
H A {E &8RRI AIGH 24t Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 7,551 8,520
98,163 89,824
ZEETE £ Auditor's remuneration 3,050 3,000
| AR Amortisation of intangible assets 4,853 7370
BRBFMXZFERA Cost of inventories recognised as
(BREREFERE 47760008 T an expense (including allowance
(ZF—=% :29,805,000/87)) for obsolete inventories of
HK$4,776,000 (2013: HK$29,805,000)) 2,409,093 1,254,515
ME - BERREINE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 30,315 33,380
B REEERMEz 8 Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories (2,244) (1,696)
28,071 31,684
I REFZREROMZ Minimum lease payments under
REHEE operating leases in respect of
land and buildings 11,669 [1,725
HERF Research and development expenses 8,347 1912

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £
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1. B A3 RESNE I1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

) EEREH (@) Directors and chief executive
ENSEMT(—E—=F: A The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2013: nine)
fMEERAHLasHMEmT : directors and the chief executive were as follows:

2014 003
Ul Efifie
Other emoluments Other emoluments
R BiEA §eR i
Bt i Ehigl G 753
Salaries  Retirement Salares Retirement
f&  andother benefits scheme it e andother  benefis scheme i
Fees benefits ~ contributions Total Fees benefts ~ contnbutons Totd
iz 7Ei &7 7 P T T i
fE4:2] Name of director HK$'000 HKs'v00 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKS0W S0 HS000 Hsomw
B Han Shuwang - 1,814 - 1,814 = 1795 = 1795
IBZ Wang Xiaodong - 1,654 17 1671 = [ 604 15 1619
H(H2) 1 Gug Not) - 1463 - 1463 - 13 - kit
i Xuju' - 181 - 181 - - - -
g Weng Ljun* - L9 - 1,19 = 1072 = 1072
Hth FagSi - - - - - - - -
Rk Zhang anhua - 167 - 167 — 1% - 1%
it Wang Dechen 190 - - 190 7 = = 77
FER Kan Lai Kuen, Ale 190 - - 190 7 = = 77
RER Gordon Ng 190 - - 190 77 = = Im
510 6,398 17 6,985 3l 608 15 6,604
s Name of the chief executive
T (H) Li Guang (Note) - 1,463 - 1,463 = 1333 = 333
# R-_Z-—MFE+—H—HE & Resigned with effect from | November 2014
£
& RZE—MFE+—A—HE i Appointed on | November 2014
£t
BEAHIETMNETREE_Z Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
—MmE+ZA=+t—-BR=ZZE—= emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31
F+ZA=+—BLEFEREEM December 2013,
M -
st FRABRARZESHFBH Note: Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
EXRBEMe D ERIERL Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
BPTRRERG 2B - services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
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. 5 B REENE » 1. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) EfRSHHMENAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
IfuRBHMERNALBEDL The five highest paid individuals included four (2013: four)
(ZF—=F:mf)EF - Oz directors. Among the four directors, one is the chief executive
EEd —fRBH- HHt—fI director. The emoluments of the remaining one (2013: one)
(ZF—=F: ) ERFHNE highest paid individual were as follows:

BIALZ#MEmT

2014 2013

FET T8

HK$’000 HK$ 000

e MEMEF Salaries and other benefits 1,133 1,072
Hec@EMNT The emoluments were within the following bands:

2014 2013

EENE ES A

Number of Number of

employee employee

1,000,001 B7TZE 1,500,000  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 I |

TEMABREK(EE) BRAA | 2014 F#
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12. HIE 12. TAXATION
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEEHREXHBLRE - Tax charge for the year comprises:
FEBRAEHR PRC Enterprise Income Tax
BIEARIE Current taxation 1,135 2,008
BEFERETR Underprovision in prior year 222 —
1,357 2,008
EFERE (% ) 2 i (P EE 30) Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 30) 61) 2,041
1,296 4,049
7R 0 I8 5 LR B A& M) 2 ¥ R The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit before
e taxation is as follows:
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BRA AR Profit before taxation 94,280 31,438
RPBMEMSRTE 25% 2 HIA M Tax charge at PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% 23,570 7,860
FBIEBERAIRAELEXE Share of results of associates
and joint ventures (33,954) (42,806)
HBRBIAIMBRRL 2 HETE Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose 6,686 700
AR ZE I RBTE Tax effect of deductible
temporary differences 3,128 12418
ARB T ARBTARAZ HBHE Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose (4,633) (3,382)
AEHEABEZ BT E Tax effect of losses not recognised 8,512 28,827
BREAACHER 2 HIBEE Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (2,674) =
PBEFERETRE Underprovision in prior year 222 —
REHERE BN E R R Tax effect of temporary
EAEREE BEY 2 differences attributable to
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries 439 432
AEEHIELH Tax charge for the year 1,296 4,049
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

12. $18 2

AR ASERMEANLEEE A RIRE
BREZERBOGEH - MU KRFHRE BT

/e

12.

BE(PEARKMNBELEZREHRE)

(REMBRED REXABRAER

AR BB E 2 BIE AR 25% °

EREBIR 2 R R TIRHIEE 30 ©

13. 8

ARREZERRERRERREEHE
—E-ME+-A=+-—BLFEERY
BEEROTEM-E—=F: &)
HEFRENEERREBAFAE LHE

& HEEE -

14. BREH-EX

KABHEEAREZERERBFTIE

RTFIEEEE -

13.

14.

TAXATION (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the Group has no

assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

DIVIDEND

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in respect
of the year ended 3| December 2014 of HKO.7 cents per share (2013
Nil) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic eamings per share attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data.

2014 2013
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Earnings for the purpose of
basic eamnings per share 90,894 39,022

R EBRERRN 2
itz B2l 4=

Number of shares

BH#E
2014 2013

Weighted average number of shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share  3,977,762,791 3,968,995,668

ARMEADECRTEEERRD
EUL I & 25| SR EE R -

TEARERER(EE) FRAF

2014 £ 8§

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2014 2013
FET e
HK$’000 HK$000
NEE FAIR VALUE

REA] At beginning of the year 128,720 38,725
B 50 38 Exchange realignment (435) 1213
NE Additions 19,522 79,400

EREEERZ A FEEN Increase in fair value recognised in profit
or loss 887 9,382
ME# At end of the year 148,694 128,720

AKBEREBEREE K KEHER
BRFEERZERNZAMEER
HERATEEAGE  FDR/RENE
WARBMEANR - REMEE T EIA
RHEAOTARA -

AERR-Z—NER-Z—=F+=
A=+—RHZREMELFEHERE
EXEBEC B S ERBEMERMKE
HRETR T B R A RN A B B E#TT
i e NFEEDREEENMOENE T
EMEBEREWARNEE EARML

HERTE -

REFMEZATER  ARANEZR
SRERERGRNAREERAR -

TRENMABEZENELFELE
RFFERZEETERBARRE) ZEM
AERAVEFAEMBLTESR(E—Z
F=R)(RELXFEFEBARE 2T
BRRENR) -

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties. The investment properties were held under medium-term
leases and in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The fair value
was determined based on direct capitalisation method by dividing
the potential rental income of the properties to be valued by the

appropriate capitalisation rate.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorized (Levels | to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

is observable.
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15. REYE » I15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
FEERGEHBRRR FUREBARE
sz RENF HERER HAVEZRE
Investment properties TERAYE Relationship of
held by the Group in AYEZHE  Valuation EZZAUBERARE unobservable
the statement of Fair value  technique(s) Significant inputs to
financial position hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) the fair value
frm B2 EAY& F= BRERE BR R4(Z T —=F: EX{HEYR  RVE
Commercial property in the PRC  Level 3 Direct Capitalisation ~ 4%) * Bt REEHEMAZER BE -
Approach b~ MERERRTR
Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation
FTERABER account of the capitalisation of rate, the lower the fair
The key inputs are: rental income potential, nature of value.
(1) BREr X the property, prevailings market
(1) Capitalisation rate;  condition, of 4% (201 3: 4%)
(2) A#E -
(2) Monthly rent. AEBFHRARB0ES T AlEE ATEES -

(ZF—=%F BYKRARKS

) BERFEAAESRERD

SLEEL Kt kg U E

AEMERESERIE %

Monthly rent, based on net The higher the monthly
floor area, using direct market rent, the higher the fair
comparables and taking into value.

account of age, location and

individual factors such as size

of property of RMB80-85/sq.m.

(2013: RMB80/sq.m.)
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FEERGERBRRE
sz RENF
Investment properties
held by the Group in
the statement of

financial position

IXRFaRE

Industrial complex

DFEER
Fair value

hierarchy

F=R

Level 3

=pup el
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BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

HEAER
IEQARE

Valuation

technique(s)

and key input(s)

BERERA
Direct Capitalisation

Approach

TREABES

The key inputs are:

(

(
(
(

) BAEL X

) Capitalisation rate;
)

2) A -
2) Monthly rent.

EZZAUBERAYE
Significant

unobservable input(s)

BERClR5-55%(—F—=%:
55%)  EREEHMEMAZR
KM - EMERBRITHR
Capitalisation rate, taking into
account of the capitalisation of
rental income potential, nature of
the property, prevailing market
condition, of 5-5.5% (2013: 5.5%)

AEBYARARBIR(ZE
—=F: §YRARE 2T) -
ANFREAREREETS L
EHAL B RER LEAR
NEUERAESARER
Monthly rent, based on net
floor area, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of age, location and
individual factors such as location
and size of property of RMBI2/
sgm. (2013: RMBI2/sqm.)

FUBRGARE
HAHEZBE
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

the fair value

BALLREE
HIE -

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair

value..

AlEE  RTEES-

The higher the monthly
rent, the higher the fair

value.

MEEBARBHE=R

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years.
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16. !1% - BERRIE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE #F  EN%E
HEL# L#E  HERRB BAR
RET Plant, Wind #ARIE HAERE
Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture RE  REEIR
land and and  plantand and  and office Motor Construction L]
buildings  machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles i progress Total
TEr &L T2 AT AT AT AT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
s cosT
R=%-=%-f-A At [ January 2013 45537 U119 4971674 25461 19,051 19929 = 632371
LS Exchange realignment 40 768 13139 757 07 45 = 15763
hE Addtions = 60 4305 6530 5374 2464 [1726 30459
& Disposdls = (3658) (4009) (29) (4574) (7%9) = (13027)
RIEHE—RHEAT Deemed disposal of 2
(fiE40) subsiciary (Note 40) (29.207) = (80053) (2414) (280 (134) — (113260
RZF-=F+-A=+-H  At3l December 2013 16,750 21,889 431,056 30,306 19,796 20,763 11,726 552,286
B8R Exchange redignment (61) @ 58 (10]) (38) ) () (198)
hE Addtions 885 1,483 1,945 6,640 2,180 2,962 - 16,095
HE Disposdls - (4,686) (2,307) o1 @ (669) - (1,757)
E L Transfer - - 4751 - - - (4757) -
RZF-BE+ZA=F-A  At3l December 2014 17,574 18,613 433,912 36,754 21,934 2,991 6,847 558,641
HEREE DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
R=%-=%-f-A At [ January 2013 3189 7,670 75495 12682 1,878 10,074 = 130,988
ERa% Bxchange realignment 8 546 93 377 0 |64 = 2128
REEE Provided for the year 1041 2062 21,09 4314 2668 2086 = 33380
RNESED AEER Impaimment loss recognised
(H&E) in proft or loss (Note) - — - 4841 - — - 4841
B Fimineted on disposd - B Q) 9 ) )
RAFLE-RNBARE Eiminated on deemed disposel
O GEL) of a subsidry (Note 40) (l64) - G 617 (28) 7 — e
RZF-=%+ZR=1-H  At3l December 2013 4,074 17,126 94,465 21,378 12,238 11,569 - 160,850
ERRE Exchange realignment (18) (57) (390) (M (19) (28) - (583)
REEfE Provided for the year 896 1,280 20,265 2,145 3,019 2,050 - 30,315
HERY Eiminated on dispos - ) (188) “9) ) (4 - @)
RZF-BE+-A=+-A  At3l December 2014 4952 14,266 114,152 24,003 15,294 13,120 - 185,787
BEE CARRYING VALUES
RZZ-ME+=A=1t—H  At3l December 2014 12,622 4341 319,770 12,751 6,640 9,817 6,847 372,854
RZZF-Z%+ZA=1t-H  At3l December2013 12676 4763 336,591 8928 7558 9,194 [1726 391436

TEMRERER(KE) ERAF |
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16. Y1% « MENRSEE &) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

M- BE—Z—=F+-A=+—HItF Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the
B ARAIZESHARBZEEERE Company conducted a review of the Group’s production assets and
ETREUREBSEERAREM S determined that some assets were fully impaired due to obsolescence.
URME © Bk - 4,841,000 7T 2 R B Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$4,841,000 had been recognised in
BRERBRDER profit or loss.

FREEYE  BELRRXEBZBEANE The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

RERATERNE straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

MELH 35% K HMHEES - Leasehold land and buildings 3 - 5% or over the unexpired lease terms,

kT IBREERE whichever is shorter

BE - XERES 9-15% Plant, equipment and machinery 9-15%

BHEZBERRE  515% Wind energy plant and equipment 5-15%

BRARIE 25% Moulds and tools 25%

RERMAZRE  10-25% Fumiture and office equipment 10 - 25%

RE 18-25% Motor vehicles 18-25%

AEE LR MEESRRTEFEET The Group’s property interests shown above were held under medium-

B4 - term leases in the PRC.

—WAER_E-HE+-A=+—H The net book value of a motor vehicle as at 3| December 2014 of
ZEREFEN43300B L(=ZE—= approximately HK$433,000 (2013: Nil) was held under a finance lease.
FR)ARERETARFE -
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17. &2 17. GOODWILL
THT
HK$000
%N COST
RZZE—=f—-HA—H" At | January 2013, 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+ZA=+—HEK and 31 December 2014
=[M&E<-= F == 15,397
A IMPAIRMENT
RZZE—=f—-HA—H" At | January 2013, 31 December 2013 and
—E-=F+-A=+-HkK 31 December 2014
—T-pmFE+=ZA=1+—H 13,393
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZE—=5+=RA=+—H At 31 December 2013 and 3| December 2014
RZZE-—DNF+-A=+—H 2,004

RREAANS  BEEPEERSE
EnBzENReELEN(ReEL
Bl R-Z-ME+-_A=+—H
ZEERVHEEAEERGELEN -

AEBEFRAGI BT BEEEREN A
MR EEEMSHzREREEA
RERE - B HTEE2004,000% 7T
ZHE MZBASAEREE 2
BRREGES 2B RIIIN(ZE
— =5 1 1289%)KEE - AR E KR
MEKRCELBMNSTRRZEAED
Garfh o BEREMEENZERZZE
Mg B I eEKEREERDR
B &5 o

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the individual cash generating unit (“CGU") of the Operation of Wind
Farm segment. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 3| December

2014 allocated to the unit of operation of Wind Farm.

The Group performed impairment review for the remaining goodwill
of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast derived from the financial
budget covering a period of 5 years, which was prepared by using the
most recent financial results with projections approved by management
at discount rate of 8.97% (2013: 12.89%) for Operation of Wind Farm,
which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount.
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18. MR EE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB A RRE  RETTR
Development Technical Licence L
cost know-how right Total
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
A CoST
RZE—=F—H—H AtlJanuary 203 — 7646 6,696 83,157
5 A% Fxchange realignment — | 374 165 1539
e Additions — 28034 — 28,034
RIELE—F] Deemed disposal of a
fEAE (Pzt40) subsidiary (Note 40) — (77.835) — (77.835)
RZT—=F At 31 December 2013
+=-RA=1—H - 28,034 6,861 34,895
B 5 B Exchange realignment - (95) (18) (113)
AE Additions 16,098 4,740 6,211 27,049
RZZ—Mm%F At 31 December 2014
+=A=1+-H 16,098 32,679 13,054 61,831
£ AMORTISATION
RZZE—=F—F—H At January 2013 — 14,381 — 14,381
B 5 AR Exchange realignment — 1334 — 1334
FATH Charge for the year — 6,683 687 7370
RIEHE—F] Eliminated on deemed disposal
Pl 2 B of a subsidiary (Note 40)
(FtaE40) — (18891) — (18891)
RZT—=F At 31 December 2013
+=RA=1—H - 3,507 687 4,194
B 5 B Exchange realignment - (12) (2) (14)
FRLH Charge for the year - 4,168 685 4,853
RZZ—M%F At 31 December 2014
+=-A=+-H - 7,663 1,370 9,033
REE CARRYING VALUES
i itk At 31 December 2014
+=-RA=1—H 16,098 25,016 11,684 52,798
RZT—=F At 31 December 2013
+=-RA=1—H — 24527 6,174 30,701
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18. BEEE )

LBV EEREREEN T SRS
i

FEKA 54

Bl iz 6FEGF
R 5%
AENNEFEIIBERD B2 AE
% REERE R

R EERNBEEBAER S BEZA
HEE2 MW EBHR S TS -

RAEFF A B EMRH DL GPSKim
PR BAERT A &

REHE A B 2 i

AEBERBE R REFHFBNOT

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continved)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over

the following period:

Development cost 5 years

Technical know-how 6 years - 8 years

Licence right 5 years

Development cost represents graphene and energy storage system for

Energy Storage and Related Products segment.

Technical know-how represents the internally generated 2MW
Electrically Excited Synchronous Motor for Wind Energy Related

Products segment.

The licence right represents GPS Terminal Development licence rights

for Telecommunication Business segment.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follow:

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
I ETIE Z AR Cost of unlisted investments 416,592 411,660
[E i = Exchange realignment 54,080 55,538
e U g 12 (&5 18 ) a A Share of post-acquisition (loss)
Hp 2 HE (R WA HIKRE profits and other comprehensive
WHR B R AR E R mF]) (expense) income net of dividend
received and unrealised profit (15,072) 6,087
455,600 473,285

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £
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AR AT 2R ()

=R =mEEaE =R = Je=[8] o GpAgE
EREEKA 2EE 6810008 L(ZF
— =4 : 6810008 ) KB WEKZR
AleR=_F—NFE+=-B=+—H" &
MEEARHEEREEZRER BT
75800008 TL(ZF— =5 : T) LXK
BRAIZRERER

FR-HNMRELRERMERD
A (8RN 45 3L L BE ) 2 H 4 iR 3R 1) &%
MEFEREENIE - HRREE
B AEBREMNEEREZERL
4128% L E35% FA - HRIEHE WK
4,932,000 B TR B a P RERR o

EXBEATZMBEAHME

BRASBEERHENA ZMBENY
ZENMT - LTHBERBZE B
ERAMBIE(REEEN T HREER
WE)PTR B

BERRARABDENZEHEANBR
EYN

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 3| December
2014 is goodwill of HK$681,000 (2013: HK$681,000) arising on the
acquisition of associates. As at 3| December 2014, unrealised profit of
HK$7,580,000 (2013: Nil) arising on the sales of goods to an associate

is recognised in the investments in associates.

During the year, the other shareholders of &N X455 @ B F T A
fRZ2 7] (“Suzhou Wind Energy”") made additional capital contribution
to Suzhou Wind Energy. The Group's equity interest in Suzhou
Wind Energy was decreased from 41.28% to 35% after the capital
contribution made by the other shareholders. Gain on deemed disposal
of HK$4,932,000 is recognised in profit or loss during the year.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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19. REFZEATIZHER 2 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EXBEATIZHBEESEEBE (£) Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
IHERBRIREERA ([ I&E Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
R Longyuan”)
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
MENEE Current assets 916,968 197,537
FREEE Non-current assets 1,082,956 1,171,125
mEaE Current liabilities 361,049 442,100
FREEE Non-current liabilities 1,137,383 430,206
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
WA Revenue 182,743 182,303
FREN R 2EBA R Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 37,786 34,528
FAE WS R RIS Dividends received from the
associate during the year 7,695 9,720
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)

Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu

Longyuan”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
TEERCEERE Net assets of Jiangsu Longyuan 501,492 496,356
AEBRIFREIRAE Proportion of the Group's
BEZ AN ownership interest in Jiangsu

Longyuan 25% 25%

ARBERIHERER CREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Jiangsu Longyuan 125,373 124,089

EEHNERZHEATNFEEH

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEEDHFARRE The Group's share of loss for the year (13,309) (19518)
AEERZEHENA Aggregate carrying amount of the
B BERHEE Group's interests in these associates 330,227 349,196

R-Z—NF+-_A=1+—8 ' ~£E
TEBENE ZFEBERINHIEE43 o

Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 December 2014

are set out in note 43.
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20.

ARERGECRZREHBOT

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follow:

2014 2013
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000

REELFEZIFLTREKA - Cost of unlisted investments in joint
R U BE A AR . ventures, net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,624,311 625832
BE 5 B Exchange realignment 241,948 246,415

R RN - HRARES Share of post-acquisition profits,

net of dividend 65,733 99,439
EhEEFE Share of net assets 1,931,992 1,971,686
B R RERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,137) (652,137)
1,279,855 1,319,549

FEMBRERNADERAKESEREM
A ZEE,156,1060008L(ZF—=
F 1 1,156,10600087L) - ZFF
T EFEEEZEEH,155343,0007 TC °
i = —ZF E 4 763,000 78 7T AT EM
KRB REREHR AR 5% BIMER °

R-E—=ZF+-F AEEHER
ERBEAERHEAAERARZE
HEzLEF—2FE=H REA
276,011,000 TRZF—=F+=
A=+ Bt AHtEEZFE(ERZT
—ME—R#E) - ZEBEXRHNBENE
RIS R 5 AN 1,446,000 8 7018 2 H
U3 132,076,000 7T °

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HKS$1,156,106,000 (2013: HK$1,156,106,000) arising on the acquisition
of joint ventures with an amount of HK$1,155,343,000 arose in 2007,
while HK$763,000 arose in 2010 for additional interest of 5% in Jiangsu
CASC Wind Turbine Manufacture Co., Ltd.

In December 2013, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Wanyuan-Henniges Sealing Systems Co., Ltd. to a third party at
a consideration of HK$276,011,000 which was included in other
receivables as at 31 December 2013 (amount settled in January 2014).
This transaction had resulted in the recognition of a gain on disposal of
HK$132,076,000 in profit or loss after netting off the transaction cost of
HK$1,446,000.
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20. REELEZER @

EXSERRCHBANGE

ARTGEERRLLEZHBENM
ZENWMT - LTHBERBEEI A
EORMBIRR(REDENEREER
REDFRARZEH -

RELERARDSEIRAEGAPBR
YN

LREEEERRDREEREARA

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material joint
venture, is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,

A([EmEE]) Ltd. (“Delphi”)
2014 2013
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
MENEE Current assets 1,319,510 1,193,108
FREEE Non-current assets 449,614 470,245
mEBE Current liabilities 1,051,413 947,789

NEEERABSEBRATSR

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

RekBFEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 142,681 83,049
nHeMER(TBREIR Current financial liabilities (excluding trade

H A AT TRA R B8 ) and other payables and provisions) 683,456 533975
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20. REZB XS ») 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
EXGELEZUBERME (&) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
TR EHAGREREEREERBAARA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
B(REE (&) Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)

2014 2013

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

WA Revenue 3,385,504 3,397,754

Profit and total comprehensive
FREN R 2EBA R income for the year 358,621 355215

Dividends received from Delphi

FAERIERRRE during the year 173,387 177,579
FRHEMNEEATEIE The above profit for the year include the following;

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

B R Depreciation and amortisation 35,481 36,293

FEHA Interest income 1,160 3,535

M EFRXZ Interest expense 11,709 11,366

PSR X Income tax expenses 62,377 61,798
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20. REBLEZER #) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
EXGELEZUBEMME (&) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
TR EHAGEREEMEERBAARA Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co.,
B(RERE (&) Ltd. (“Delphi”) (Continued)
F B AR E BN R A M B mR P Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RN EREESCREESK carrying amount of the interest in Delphi recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

2014 2013
FET TR
HK$’000 HK$000
AR EERE Net assets of Delphi 717,711 715,564
AEEREREMEEERZCBDL  Proportion of the Group’s
ownership interest in Delphi 49% 49%
[EES Goodwill 639,152 641,322
RBERATLERAB 2 FE Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition 245,832 265,950
AEENEREER CREE Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Delphi 1,236,662 1,257,899
FERERZEELXGEER Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
AEBHEFERER)EN The Group's share of (loss)
profit for the year (16,825) 27,340
RN-ZT—mME+-—B=+—H K&£EH Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group at 31 December
FTELRENE ZFBHIAMFA3 - 2014 are set out in note 43.
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21. it ERE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
I LR - R (BTEE) Unlisted shares, at cost (Note) 1,521 —
faE - ZIREUKANRRERFTE - AR Note: The investment is measured at cost less impairment as the directors of
RAEERRATETERASE the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured
FTE e reliably.
22. BE 22. INVENTORIES
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
JRA Raw materials 148,616 159,724
FEm Work-in-progress 173,084 93,806
UK m Finished goods 164,030 160,600
485,730 414,130
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23. B RH MBI

BOREMERRBIEE S ERRK
805,945,000/ TL(ZF — =4 : 531,832,000
L) BB R AR B 467,062,0007% TT
(ZZ—=%:66701,000/7C) - —Z—M
FTZA=T—HZBZEYGBRELE
R T 55 = 5 B I E (R € 270,181,000 78
TE(CE—=4F : 1162290008 7T) ° &k
BRI ESF(ZE—=F: | 25F)8R
HERRBEE - ERESHEKKESE
% AEEGRHEEEn RREHRBELATHE
BEFFHOBEESR - MTESHERF
HEEZRPREERR —FALE - R
BEREABNEERSKEERB )
T2 B S REUGRGIRE ) N iE HE T
ER R DITIT -

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$805,945,000 (2013: HK$531,832,000) net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$67,062,000 (2013: HK$66,701,000). The amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2014 included retention receivables for
the sales of wind turbines to third parties of HK$270,181,000 (2013:
HK$116,229,000). The balances will be settled upon the completion
of warranty period of | - 5 years (2013: | - 5 vyears). For the remaining
balances of trade receivables, the Group allows credit periods for 90
days on average to its customers for sales of goods and rendering of
services. At the discretion of the executive directors, several major
customers were allowed to settle their balances beyond the credit
terms up to one year. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the invoice dates
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective

revenue recognition dates:

2014 2013

FAET FHAT

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 263,918 116,578
3I290H Between 31 - 90 days 94,809 194,305
91Z180H Between 91 - 180 days 352 6,437
181 £365H Between |81 - 365 days 363,533 747
i —F Over | year 83,333 213,765
805,945 531,832

SFAREEHEMEKRASRREREE
#8 ¥280,069,000% (= & — = F:
154,566,000 A7) HBRK - RIS HR
@E - MASBY R AREBEELR
B AEEU AR EEHBHEEMNE
o WERUFHZFHE A180H (=
E—=4F :365H)°

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$280,069,000 (2013: HK$154,566,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 180 days (2013: 365 days).
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

23. BES REMEKS =) 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
2BHERREZE S EKRERD Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:
B
2014 2013
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
B Overdue by:
0&9H Between 0 - 90 days 352 6,437
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 246,061 747
838 180 H Over 180 days 33,656 147,382
g Total 280,069 154,566
AEE e ARABIB365EHEK The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 365
SERHBE  RAEEBALSH = days because historical experiences is such that receivables that are past
BEI36s B ER TR — R EEXIRE - due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for some major
HATEERERAFRECEHYETFE customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the executive
EERERI) o directors.
SREREESENT Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2014 2013
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$000
FHER Balance at beginning of the year 66,701 65,687
b 30 38 % Exchange realignment (94) 250
REBEHREFRZ Impairment loss recognised in respect
REEE of trade receivables 455 764
FIEER Balance at end of the year 67,062 66,701
RIEBEERERIHE, RRE The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
N B 7R 55 B R B KA 5 B (E BB E B impaired trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/
BHRUEN - FEETERZSER and have no material transactions with the Group during the year. The
A EMER S - Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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23. B REMEBWER @)

RERERHER  AEB2HTE
EHEHEKAETHEERPZEERE
ERRAEEPZEERE -BTEFZ
RELZ2ZHALETLBEETEDR
A AEBEEHEBROEEREZEER
8 0 65%(ZF—=F : 66%) 8 S EUMK
PR B BT ERE

AEER=-FT-—mE+=-A=1+—AH
CEMBERFPREREKEECERE
12,972,000 (ZF—=4F : 12,614,000
BIr)  REHEFE RS 184,877,000
BIL(ZT—=4% : 61,052,000 7T) * &
3L ER 493160008 TT(ZF—=4F :
88,259,000/87T) - FEE HEWAEE
Z W ZE 502653770008 (=T — =
% : 471,380,000 7T ) & B B8 fE M — [
EREDEREEE 2 EWE1E 44,865,000
BIL(ZT—=4%F : 737140008 ) AR
T =FHE-—HAELEIEKMK
{&276,011,0005 7T °

BE_T-—NE+-_A=+—HIEE
AEBAREREEZEREI80H )
R(ZE—=%:908) -

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer's credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 65% (201 3:
66%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have the best credit history managed by the Group's marketing team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2014
are dividend receivable from a joint venture of HK$12,972,000
(2013: HK$12,614,000), deposits for purchase of inventories in the
PRC of HK$184,877,000 (2013: HK$61,052,000), VAT recoverable
of HK$49,316,000 (2013: HK$88,259,000), bills receivable of
HK$265,377,000 (2013: HK$471,380,000) in relation to the settlement
of trade receivables and bills receivable of HK$44,865,000 (2013:
HK$73,714,000) in relation to the settlement of dividend receivable
from a joint venture and consideration receivable for disposal of a joint
venture of HK$276,01 1,000 in 201 3.

All bills receivables of the Group are aged within 180 days for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 90 days).
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24. B FEMEIE AT

FUBEARNZXBREFTERMAR
239,971,000 TT(=
54,4780007% T ) & B 5 & W K
349,069,000 L(Z T —=F : T) o
“ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ\%ﬁﬁ%%%w
EREE - BHRRRBER
%E&ﬁ%%ﬁwzxﬁﬂﬂ%%m
MER)EEVAFEAS  FasH
3,122,000 7L(= & — = £ : 2,950,000
B AEER B ERIRERERE -

A
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BL(ZE—Z=%F: Eﬂnmwbw&
a%ﬁﬁl@mmm%n( —=

E:mﬂmw%m%ﬁWmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E—mEFZA=+—HIFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates are prepayment for
inventories of HK$239,971,000 (2013: HK$54,478,000) and trade
receivables of HK$349,069,000 (2013: Nil). For prepayment for
inventories, the amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and will be
utilised upon receipt of inventories. For trade receivables, the amount
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has credit periods for 90 days
for sales of goods mainly wind energy related products. The remaining
balance of HK$3,122,000 (2013: HK$2,950,000) are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the amounts due to associates are receipt in advance
of HK$99,700,000 (2013: HK$257,772,000) and trade payables of
HK$149,141,000 (2013: HK$60,272,000). For receipt in advance, the
amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing and will be utilised upon
sales of wind energy related products. For trade payables, the amount is

unsecured, non-interest bearing and has credit period of 365 days.
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25. W e EBEENIE

EmENH LGS

ZEEBROBEREKEE B EX
1088130008 L(ZZE—=F: R F
B E 11049080007 L) » E A B E
EXTAEDE709880008 m(=F
— =% 171,229,000/ 70) - FFEETEH

REB(_T—=F 6% BEOBE
X AECEERASERAEEREE
7574120008 L2 T REE ° $H 58
37,825,000 (= F —=4F : 33,679,000
BILT)RRE - AECERAEEEFT
Mg Bl E 370,988,000 L(=E
— =% :71,2290008 L) R =T~ F
TZA=+—RB 2 Ef & £223324,000
BIL(ZZT—=F : 23,404,00087T) 15 MA
BHRZAECECITHEBENRET
HthBENMBSRBEEE - —S—=F
TZAZ+—HZERER T —HF
+tAfEE M-_T—=F+-RA=+—
B2 TREKRAREREEYHBEER
BEE -ARAIESRREREELE
REZTEREREHRLEEAARN
BE - ARZRBER=T-—EF+=A
S+t BHENIEEERBEE o
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES

Non-current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$108,813,000 (2013: HK$104,908,000 under current assets), of
which loans advanced to the joint venture amounted to HK$70,988,000
(2013: HK$71,229,000) bears fixed interest rate at 6% (2013: 6%)
per annum. The joint venture has pledged its land and buildings with a
carrying amount of HK$57,412,000 to the Group to secure the loan.
The remaining amount of HK$37,825,000 (2013: HK$33,679,000) is
non-interest bearing. The joint venture has entered into arrangements
with the Group in connection with the above loans of HK$70,988,000
(2013: HK$71,229,000) and other balance of HK$23,324,000 (2013:
HK$23,404,000) as at 31 December 2014 that these amounts shall be
repaid from the proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings
and certain other assets of that joint venture. The loan at 31 December
2013 was repayable in July 2014 and the remaining balance at 31
December 2013 was repayable on demand and was classified as current
asset. The directors of the Company considered that the amount due
from the joint venture will not be settled within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period, the amount was thus reclassified to non-
current asset at 31 December 2014.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

25. Bl e EBEENIE

(%)

REEESER

EHRBRE-—BER—HEECENIE
30,003,000 B 7L (ZF —=4F : 30,166,000
B BRBTEELERKTEEH
ENERERS  BRZZE—RFER
HIE R E o T8R4 £2344,00078 7T
(Z2—=F: 2 )REER 28 RE

e
EREE -

BRT-—ReetEscRBRERT
EECE—RZEFPMN—BHBER
6,237,000 JL(= T — = 4F : 6,258,000
BIL) c ZEECERBERERAEE
YNHEREE L ZEERRES - %&
BRAEER  RERRERER - F
K54 66,0008 TL(=ZF — =4 : 10,0008
TO) RERR - R ERIREKEE o
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

Current balance

Included in the balances is an amount due from a joint venture of
HK$30,003,000 (2013: HK$30,166,000), which represented the
retention receivables for the sales of wind turbines to a joint venture
that took place in prior years which will be settled upon the completion
of warranty period in 2015. The remaining balance of HK$344,000
(2013: Nil) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

Included in the amount due to a joint venture is a financial guarantee of
HK$6,237,000 (2013: HK$6,258,000) granted to a customer of the joint
venture. The joint venture deposited the same amount to the Group as
a guarantee deposit under the arrangement. The balance is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The remaining balance
of HK$66,000 (2013: HK$10,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

26. BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.15% (2013: 0.01% to 1.25%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

are related.
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
359,617 39937

B AR T 1F 3R 0.35% 2 B & F I R
(ZE—=%:035%):t 8 - 2HEAR
1718 317,779,000 (= & — = F :
9,312,000/ 70 ) BEAEE FRITREZ
ER EBEN-_T—RAE-AKEHEE
EERRER  UHBARBDEE -

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.35% (201 3:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
HK$7,779,000 (2013: HK$9,312,000), have been pledged to secure
certain bank facilities. It will be released in March 2015 upon the
settlement of the related borrowings and are therefore classified as

current assets.

Annual Report 2014 | CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

147



148

e I AR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F WF1T=A=1"HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

27. B RHEMEMAR

BEOREMERNRBEEZENR
1,055807,000% (= T — = &F:
739,882,000/ 7T ) - AEBBEEEHE
EEE30BEE0HAMNEESR - EHEM
FRBEBRTEREZA ZRR TN
B

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$1,055,807,000 (2013: HK$739,882,000). The Group normally
receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:

2014 2013

FET AT

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 235,162 168,244
31E9%H Between 31 - 90 days 452,160 216,204
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 191,003 145,202
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 124,072 160,767
HiB—F Over | year 53,410 49,465
1,055,807 739,882

RZE-—NE+-_A=+—08" &
AREB EMENRBEEREET
72 & 5t 7% 7825900008 L(Z T — =
F:2599000% 7T ) BKE P K
7§257259,000% (= T — = F:
18,852,000 % 7T ) « 18 B R & & 2,535,000
BIL(ZFT— =4 25440008 7T) &
BT B 8 B A 15,683,000 (= F — =
F:13212,00087T) - BEHAZERS
4,363,000 7T(= T — = 4 : 4,378,000
B ) K e EH 31,482,000 (=&
— =% :35729,000/87T) °

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

Included in the Group's other payable at 31 December 2014 are
accruals for construction work of HK$2,590,000 (2013: HK$2,599,000),
receipt in advance from customers of HK$257,259,000 (2013:
HK$18,852,000), project guarantee deposits of HK$2,535,000 (2013:
HK$2,544,000), accrued transportation cost of HK$15,683,000
(2013: HK$13,212,000), office rental payable of HK$4,363,000
(2013: HK$4,378,000) and bills payable of HK$31,482,000 (2013:
HK$35,729,000).
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REBBHREZRBEARBERAMHE
R#REEEZRTEMKHEEN R
ARFREEH RERFT 2 RE
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

28. WARRANTY PROVISION

Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

(R EE) Movement in the warranty provision:
2014 2013
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$000
FH 2 iR Balance at beginning of the year 35,937 31,218
b 50 8% Exchange realignment (121) 1,040
RIS Additional provisions recognised 50,452 17,336

R A& — R B B 22 R R 8 Eliminated on deemed disposal of

(PHE40) a subsidiary (Note 40) — (6791)
PRkEE Utilisation of provision (12,236) (6,866)
FIR 7 G5k Balance at end of the year 74,032 35,937
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

29. EE

29. BORROWINGS
2014 2013
FAET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ;@%%(mufa) Short-term bank loans (Note a) 478,862 572,374
Hin e R (M Short-term other loans (Note a) 190,145 —
REEERLHEK (W itb) Short-term portion of shareholder's loans
(Note b) 316,909 317,985
BRRRBH S ER(MTD) Long-term portion of shareholder's loans
(Note b) 671,847 992,113
Hi RS (M) Long-term other loans (Note c) 57,044 72234
1,714,807 1,954,706
ARSI EEMA Less: Amount due within one
R—FREEZHE year under current liabilities (985,916) (890,359)
—F1& B8 2 FOE Amount due after one year 728,891 | 064,347
AEEEEZDBEBRNAT - The maturity of the Group’s borrowings
is as follows:
—FR Within one year 985,916 890,359
MEEREF Between two to five years 671,847 992,113
BBRF Over five years 57,044 72,234
1,714,807 1,954,706
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 3| December 2014 represents unsecured bank loans
of HK$478,862,000 or RMB377,760,000 (2013: HK$572,374,000 or
RMB450,000,000).

Loan of HK$418,862,000 or RMB330,428,000 bears fixed-rate
interest ranging from 5.6% to 6.96% per annum in 2014. Loans of
HK$521,497,000 or RMB410,000,000 at 31 December 2013 bore fixed-
rate interest at 6% per annum were fully repaid in 2014.

Loan of HK$60,000,000 bears floating-rate interest at 2.85% on top
of Hong Kong inter-bank offered rate per annum in 2014. Loans of
HK$50,877,000 or RMB40,000,000 at 31 December 2013 bore floating-
rate interest at 0% on top of People’s Bank of China benchmark interest

rate per annum were fully repaid in 2014.

The loans are repayable within one year (2013: within one year) and are
used to finance the operations of the Group.

During the year, the Group obtained new loans from Aerospace
Science and Technology Finance Co, Ltd. (“ASTF"), a fellow subsidiary
of CALT, amounting to HK$63,382,000 or RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil)
and HK$126,763,000 or RMB 100,000,000 (2013: Nil). The amounts are
unsecured and are guaranteed by CALT, bear fixed-rate interest ranging
from 5.32% to 5.70% per annum and are repayable in April 2015 and
December 2015 respectively.
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29. £ »)
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through
CASC's subsidiary, ASTF as the trustee in aggregate amounting to
HK$988,756,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2013: HK$1,310,098,000
or RMB1,030,000,000). HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000 was
additionally raised in 2013.

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 3.7%
to 5.0% (2013: 3.7% to 5.0%) per annum. Loans of HK$316,909,000
or RMB250,000,000 (2013: HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000),
HK$507,054,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2013: HK$508,776,000 or
RMB400,000,000) and HK$ 164,793,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (2013:
HK$ 165,352,000 or RMB130,000,000) are repayable in March 2015,
April 2016 and July 2017 respectively. Loans of HK$317,985,000 or
RMB250,000,000 at 31 December 2013 were fully repaid in 2014.

The amount represents a loan of HK$57,044,000 or RMB45,000,000
(2013: HK$72,234,000 or RMB56,790,000) advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People’s Bank of China
Benchmark interest rate that is 5.54% (2013: 5.90%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

REFIBEE Deferred tax assets 1,937 2,009
BREREAE Deferred tax liabilities (20,831) (20988)
(18,894) (18979)

RAFER E—FREERZENEL
HEABE(BEE)REBREDHNT :

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

WEAE
EffRENE Rt RDTEN
Revaluation (M&) Undistributed
of investment Others profits of @ct
properties (note)  subsidiaries Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZE—=F—H—H At anuary20I3 5837 (3.090) 12,986 15733
B R Exchange adjustments 183 (65) I 129
Bax¥ Charge to profit or loss 2,346 70 432 2,848
BXMZHEENH  PRCwithholding tax paid - — (807) (807)
RIELE—FMBAR  Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
(Ff 3% 40) (Note 40) — 1,076 = 1,076
RZZT—=% At 31 December 2013
+=A=+—~H 8,366 (2,009) 12,622 18,979
BEE B Exchange adjustments (12) 6 (18) (24)
Baixd Charge to profit or loss 221 66 439 726
EXMZHEENSH  PRCwithholding tax paid - - (787) (787)
RZ-Z—MmF At 31 December 2014
+=ZA=+—~H 8,575 (1,937) 12,256 18,894

Wi ZELREERBNHY RREES

EEZRRER o

Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences rising on
government grants and warranty provision.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

30.

BERIE 2

R-Z-—mWE+-A=+—8 " x4&H
M AARE AR IEEE A 1,013324,000
B (=T — = 4 : 989,972,000 7T )
RERERRZER - FR AR K
AT EBRZENRE  WABHT
EEERRECHELE KERH
TH 85 18400,385,000 8 T(ZZF — = F ¢
394,029,000/ 7T ) F] T MR AL o Hen
AERABEBEFE T —RFE_T
—NWE(ZE—=F: B2 —NFEZ
T \F)RFREIE -

BHEZEF BB AR KD &I
ZEBZEERIE122670008 T(ZF
— =41 [2,6220008 ) B AE B -
ER A AN 52 (B ] LA 2R ol B P 2 B o B [ B
B I ES RN B R R RS B EF
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 3| December 2014, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,013,324,000 (2013: HK$989,972,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$400,385,000 (2013: HK$394,029,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five
years from 2015 to 2019 (2013: from 2014 to 2018).

Deferred taxation of HK$12,267,000 (2013: HK$12,622,000) has been
provided in respect of temporary differences attributable to those
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$46,438,000 (2013: HK$35,781,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

31. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2014, government grants of HK$35,052,000 (2013:
HK$30,494,000) represent subsidies granted by PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss over
33/, years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and buildings

(included in property, plant and equipment).

At 31 December 2013, an amount of HK$10,366,000 represented
subsidies granted to the Group by PRC government/authorities for

EBRMETAEE 2@ - telecommunication business.
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

RERMIELZ A - Analysed for reporting purpose as:

FREBEE Non-current liabilities 33,879 39,792
mEaE Current liabilities 1,173 1,068
35,052 40,860

32. REHERIE

AEEEREREHERR WA=
HHR4E -  BREHEEAEHEBZAZ
BIE REEF25%  ABAREERHE
BRERE-

32. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

The Group has one of its motor vehicles held under finance lease. The
lease terms is 4 years. Interest rate underlying the obligation under
finance lease is fixed at 2.5% per annum. The lease has purchase options
upon expiring of the lease.
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32. U EHERIE 32. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE -
(&) CONTINUED (Continued)
BEEERE BREEERERE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET T FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$000
RMEMERNE Amounts payable under finance lease
—5FR Within one year 133 — 19 —
BB—FEIZRME In more than one year but not
more than two years 133 = 124 =
BAMEETZRASE In more than two years but not
more than five years 157 = 152 =
423 - 395 _
W BRMBER Less: future finance charges (28) = N/A N/A
HEAERE Present value of lease obligation 395 — 395 —

B 12EPAEERZZIE  Less: Amount due for settlement with
(RRBAETIIT) 12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (119) =

1218 A& IEER 258 Amount due for settlement after
|2 months 276 —

AEE s REREARALEAEER The Group's obligation under the finance lease is secured by the lessor’s
BEMWE BIEEM - charge over the leased asset.

156 +EmMAERER(EE) EEAF | 2014 £§
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

33. SHARE CAPITAL
R EE &8
Number of
shares Amount
HK$ 000
HIREEO.I0B T2 Bk Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZE—=%—H—H At | January 2013, 31 December 2013 and
—E-=ft-A=1+—H 31 December 2014
RZZ—WE+=-A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BRITRER Issued and fully paid:
RZZ—=F—A—-Hk At | January 2013 and 3| December 2013
—E—=%+ZA=+—H” 3968,995,668 396,900
BT AR (Pt ) Issue of shares (Note) 400,000,000 40,000
RZE—NF+=A=+—H At 3| December 2014 4,368,995,668 436,900

ffzE: RZE-—WET-_A+HAB K
A R|E Astrotech Group Limited
LEE (BE) mERRQAE]
VR E R B IR E A GR0.758
L #17400,000,0008 & 0.0178
T2 LR e RBEEER_-F
—EFZAZTMATER °

Note: On |5 December 2014, the Company entered into a Placing and
Subscription Agreement with Astrotech Group Limited and Industrial
Securities (Hong Kong) Capital Limited for the issue of 400,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.75 per share. The subscription
was completed on 24 December 2014.
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34.

35.
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34.

35.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 29 and obligation under finance
lease disclosed in note 32, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and accumulated losses.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ST RIS Categories of financial instruments
2014 2013
FET FHET
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
EREE Financial assets
ERREBER(BERE Loans and receivables (including cash
RBReEEY) and cash equivalents) 2,802,411 2,208,602
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 1,521 —
2,803,932 2,208,602
EREE Financial liabilities
B A Amortised cost 3,092,670 3,084,305

2014 £ 8§
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from/to associates, amounts due from/to joint
ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out

below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2014 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, while the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk due to financial guarantees provided by the Group is the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by the
Group as disclosed in Note 42. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 42% (2013: 27%) and 76% (2013: 68%) of the total trade
receivables due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 78% (201 3:
73%) of the total amounts due from joint ventures is due from one
joint venture. The Group monitors the exposure to credit in respect of
the amounts due from associates and joint ventures through exercising
influence or control over their financial and operating policy decisions

and reviewing their financial position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2014 and 2013 (note 26 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2014 and 2013 (note 29 for detalils).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and

will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank balances for 2014 and 2013 (note 26 for details),
fixed-rate borrowings for 2014 and 2013 (note 29 for details) and
amounts due from joint ventures that bear fixed interest rate (note
25 for details). The management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant

interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings have been [0 basis
points (2013: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$88,000 (2013: HK$72,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposures should the need arise.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end

of the reporting period.

TREECRFIZERERE Liquidity and interest risk tables
it 3% AER
ERilE Rehg
Weighted ZERE-£ L
average HEX  OR-BR  -EZE  Imomths -FRE  EENE Total RAf
effective Baff Lessthan [-3 to -5 Over undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate  On demand | month months | year years Syears  cashflows amount
5 HKSU0  HKSO00  HKSUO0  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOO  HKSOMD  HKSUOO
5 014
Hitegeg Nor-eriatie franci ebittes
EARAMERT Trade and other payables - - 57917 LY(Ivid 316617 17,908 - L L
fE-%8 Borrowings - fied rate 507 - - - 954,102 125,651 = 1619754 1597763
-8 Bormowings - flating rate 4n - - - 02214 - 18393 140,607 117,044
ERBELTN Amounts due to assodiates - U841 - - - - - 248841 U341
EffaetEs Amount due to ot ventures - 6,303 - - - - - 6,303 6,303
BEMERE Oblgation under a fiance lease 150 - Il n 100 9% - n 395
BBER(E) Finandal quarantees (Note) - 44,266 - - - - - 44266 -
290410 157,928 47029 1333083 803,850 18393 342913 3,093,065
= 013
HitEEEE Nor-riatie franci ebittes
EAREERH Trade end other payables = = 185,111 BI8l 7774 74565 = 52771 852771
fEE-%8 Borrowings - fixed rate SH = = 6375 802058 1101327 = 967,137 1831595
fE-%8 Bomowings - foatng rate 594 = = = 5380 = 107,19 (60474 I3
EABERRT Amounts due to assocites = 318044 = = = = = 318044 318044
Ef-Ragtss Amount due to ajoint venture = 6278 = = = = = 6178 6278
BhER(M) Fiancial uarantees (Note) - 50776 - - - - - 50776 -
3150% 185,111 301579 163112 1175892 107,194 3307986 3084305
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee are the maximum
amounts the Group could be forced to settle under the arrangement for
the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that such
an amount will not be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which

are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

0 the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

0 the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the Group was committed to capital
expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately

HK$ 15,585,000 relating to construction of an investment property.
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum

lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in

MAFEWT respect of land and buildings as set out below:
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
—FR Within one year 4,725 8,875
F_FEEAF(BEMEREEA)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 3,364 4757
8,089 13,132

BO—BRAFEMFE=FH(—T—=
£ RE)ETHN  MESNERAT

FEEEAHBEA

REBERETERE  AEEEEPTY
TXNARRKEREFENT :

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two - three years

(2013: two years) and rentals are fixed for the lease period.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2014 2013

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

—FR Within one year 7,093 7,117
F_FEEAF(BEMEREEA)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 22,937 24,833
REFENE After five years 70,859 76,399
100,889 108,349

TEMABREK(EE) BRAA | 2014 F#
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$7,551,000 (2013:
HK$8,520,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 29, the Group has the
following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“‘government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group

(1

Included in borrowings at 3| December 2014
were three (2013: six) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$988,756,000 or RMB780,000,000 (2013:
HK$1,310,099,000 or RMBI,030,000,000) which
are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging
from 3.7% to 5.09% (2013: 3.7% to 5.0%) per annum.
Loans of HK$316,909,000 or RMB250,000,000
(2013: HK$317,985,000 or RMB250,000,000),
HK$507,054,000 or RMB400,000,000 (2013:
HK$508,776,000 or RMB400,000,000) and
HK$ 164,793,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (2013:
HK$ 165,320,000 or RMB130,000,000) are repayable
in March 2015, April 2016 and July 2017 respectively.
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AMAME R TEH
TR (AR ET
MEFEHE - Bt
AREM G IRIEH =
TR IR i 2R A1 48t B
— E3MWE # ¥
BR-FA AEHE
M A fin R M RHE E &
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

@)

During the year, the Group obtained new loans
from ASTF, a fellow subsidiary of CALT, amounting
to HK$63,382,000 or RMB50,000,000 (2013: Nil)
and HK$126,763,000 or RMB100,000,000 (2013:
Nil). The amount are unsecured and are guaranteed
by CALT, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 5.32%
to 5.70% per annum and are repayable in April 2015
and December 2015 respectively.

On 27 December 2013, a subsidiary of the Company,
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Materials
Co. Ltd. ("IM Composite Material”), entered into
a contracting agreement with Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology
("Aerospace Material”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CALT, pursuant to which IM Composite Material
is to supply a set of 3SMW wind turbine blade mould
to Aerospace Material in accordance with the terms
of the agreement. During the year, IM Composite
Material supplied the 3MW wind turbine blade mould
to Aerospace Material amounted to HK$14,850,000
or RMBI1,832,300. Details of the transaction are
set out in the Company's announcement dated 3|
December 201 3.
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39. HREA T2 5 &%

(&)

() BPEBHERERZRXS

(%)

(b) HEMBBFEEZIXS

(1

TEMRERER(KE) ERAF |

—E-mE+ A
=t+—HZBERR
B — B R A
HERRA Sz —2
B 357,044,000 7T
g A R % 45,000,000
(= E — = F:
7223400078 7T 3 A
R # 56,790,000 7T ) *
FHIE R ERR RY
B F Rl & 5 5.54%(=
T —=F:590%)
TAEARZE

AKE R EE MG
HEAERAEXKE
KeBZRR/ BA
SEEREZERE
RME - ZFEBAA
BERBYBELUSE =
T AREMEET
RPRHEEEET

MO AEEEBK
IR E B 2 RITA]
UEBRS BRERF
oo EREEM R
RITRE - KED R
TEREBITERS
HBFEAERER S °
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2014 was
a loan of HK$57,044,000 or RMB45,000,000 (2013:
HK$72,234,000 or RMB56,790,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate interest at
5.54% (2013: 5.90%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors consider
those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business with them
are concemned. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases transactions with certain customers and
suppliers in which the directors are of the opinion
that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related

entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings

are with government-related entities.
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39. HEEANTZR5 iR 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(&) BALANCES (Continued)
(i) REMBRELZXS (ii) Transactions with other related parties
@) HBEEYFEMEE QTR (a)  For amounts due from/to associates, please refer to note
H - w2HME24 - 24,
b) HFHHEEK ENEELER (b)  For amounts due from/to joint ventures, please refer to
- F2REMES - note 25.
(© REA REEEBEAL (c)  During the year, the Group had the following significant
ZERZZWT transactions with related parties:
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
BHENREE Purchase of goods from associates 331,344 23,678
REtERREE Sale of goods to associates 853,056 —
RE NG Z
MR EFFI S Interest on loan from a shareholder, CALT 55,078 55951
REMARHEHH 2RZE  Interest on loan form a fellow
fit A R ERFR subsidiary, ASTF 6,352 —
R4 —FIMBAREAE Interest on other loan due to
BEAREN 2 FER a non-controlling shareholder with
B 2 E M EHF S significant influence over a subsidiary 3,640 4404
KEGEREZFSWA Interest income from joint ventures 6,033 3,186
d) RZIE—NF+-A=1+— (d)  At31 December 2014, CALT has given corporate guarantees
B A& 2 mfn AR B amounting to HK$316,909,000 or RMB250,000,000 (2013:
R A RIHER 316,909,000 Nil) to ASTF to secure the credit facilities granted to the
7 7T 3 A R 250,000,000 Group.

T(ZB—=F &)UER
REBERERZEERECE

ﬁ o
() FEEEABZHM (e)  Compensation of key management personnel
FRATEEBABZFH M The remuneration of key management during the year was
T as follows:
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
SRR Short-term benefits 7,717 6,876
BEB 2 18 A Post-employment benefits 17 15
1,734 6,891
TEEBRARZH M EM The remuneration of key management is determined
ZEgREARBE LTSS by the remuneration committee having regard to the
BExE - performance of individuals and market trends.
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40. RIEHE—FEMHRBEAT

RBEFE  AKE K —HEHNEAR (3
IR o L BE BT A IR 2 mI ([ 8RR
) AXBRLERNERK)ZIHE
BERBEESIRGMNEALEEE L E
EHh - AEBARECEZHREAT
ZEFERBPLI=ZRRIEME X
B-Z-—=-FMA-BERABER 1
BEFE  AREBZEEFTHEFT
AR EEERMNEE 2 S —BRE
HEN=-MEREERARLA  ¥A-F
—=FUA-BER- - BERHEER
M (REMNEEE Z HEREEE) 2R
ERARANDZ =2 RE(E=R)ENE
B Bt - AEEKE S| EEME L
BEEEY2EN BT~ =F0A
— B NEEKEBEHMNEE 2 EH
B NRERER AKBEEREH
JNEVBE41.28% 2 B #E - &R EBERK AR

REBEAT -

HMNEERREHERS FEERD

40. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In prior year, the Group and the non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary, R M R4 ERE BT B IR 2 &) (“Suzhou Wind Energy),
whose business is manufacturing and trading of wind turbines, agreed to
change the proportion of directors in the board of directors of Suzhou
Wind Energy. The number of directors that can be appointed by the
Group had decreased from three to two out of five board members
with effect from | April 2013. In prior year, the Group had transferred a
right to appoint a director imrevocably to &M =FHEE BB AR A7),
another shareholder of Suzhou Wind Energy, with effect from | April
2013. All decisions about operating and financial (which are relevant
activities of Suzhou Wind Energy) require three-fifth votes (i.e. three
votes). As a result, the Group had lost its ability to direct the relevant
activities of Suzhou Wind Energy. The Group had lost its control over
Suzhou Wind Energy since | April 2013. The Group continues to
hold 41.28% equity interest of Suzhou Wind Energy after the deemed
disposal and Suzhou Wind Energy became an associate of the Group.

The net assets of Suzhou Wind Energy at the date of deemed disposal

T were as follows:
142013
FET
HK$000
ME - BB RRE Property, plant and equipment 108,403
BEE Intangible assets 58,944
RIERIBEE Deferred tax assets 1,076
78 Inventories 111949
B 5 K E A UK Trade and other receivables 102,541
RITHESREIRE Bank balances and cash 9,718
B 5 REAERK Trade and other payables (100,323)
&% Borrowings (111,241)
R Warranty provision 6791
FEEE Net assets 174,276
JEFE 1 S Non-controlling interests (103,341)
EREBRENAEROFEER Net assets transferred to interest in an associate 70935
RIELEELERERLFHR Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal
BHERTERER S Bank balances and cash disposed of 9,718

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £
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REHE—EMRBAT @

ARBEER/RBELERMNER
RBERAZREBENEFES LA
FEEERRERS -

FEHFEHEXSH
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41.

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of the
retained interest classified as interest in the associate at the date of

deemed disposal approximated to its carrying amount.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In 2014, the Group has used its existing inventories of HK$4,740,000
(2013: HK$28,034,000) to generate a technical know-how. Details of
the technical know-how has disclosed in note 8.

In 2014, the Group has additionally acquired an investment property of
HK$19,522,000. The payment of HK$14,765,000 was outstanding and

was included in other payables.

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2014 2013
FET TET
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of a

banking facility granted to an associate

— amount guaranteed 38,029 44518
— amount utilised 12,676 25439
Guarantee given to a third party 6,237 6,258

ARREZRAR  ERZAFELTE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the

guarantee are not significant.
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43. TEMBAT BEATR
BELEER

RZE-—DNER=ZZ—=F+=A
Zt—BZAEEIEMBERAR  BE
DAIRAEREERDT :

NEER

Name of company

HEAR
Subsidiaries
EEEHMA T RS -

Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong:

PEMAREEERAE

China Aerospace Telecommunications Limited

HERREREE)ARLA
(ARRIBEXBRAH)

China Energine (Hong Kong) Limited
(Formerty known as Tin Shun Industrial Limited)

NIEEBRAA]

New Image Development Limited

NEERARAR

Crownpluss International Limited

EPEZMRAES -
Registered and operating in the PRC:

IRERTEERAR
Beijing Energine Industry Co,, Ltd*

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the

Company at 3| December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

BRITEEREZ

HE/ERERE RagzzEAL

Nominal value of KAREE% REEE®%

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capitall held by attributable TEEHR

registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

10,0007 100 100 - — DEEREH

HK$10,000 Distribution of
broadband business

Jhiy 100 100 - —  DERERE

HK$2 Distribution of
elevator products

57 00 10— — EEER

HKS Investment holding

BT 100 100 - — REHER

HK§ | Investment holding

AR% 1182511007 - — 100 100 RARRREDBEK

RMBI18251,100 Investment holding
and distibution of
wind turbine
generators
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43. TEMBAT BEATR

EELESEH o

LEER

Name of company

WEAR (£)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

FREHREE : (&)

Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)

THMAERB L ERERAA
Jiangsu Aerospace Wanyuan
REPM Motor Co, Ltd*

MAERERENEERRATA
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Power Co, Ltd*

MABREE(RINER AR

AR EMAB RN RAEERAF
Inner Mongolia Energine New
Energy Development Co. Ltd#

NEEMASREE X EREAB AR
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Wind Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd

REEMASREAHERAR
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine
Composite Materials Co. Ltd*

BE—F—FEf+=—f=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 2014

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)

ERTERRAZ

VAT RAER AL

Nominal value of KDAEE% KEBE %

issued ordinary Percentage of equity

share capitall held by attributable TERHK

registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities

2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %

AR 500000007 - - 52 5 BERSHAREER

RMB50,000,000 Manufacture and
distrbution of
elevator products

ARK 938000007 - - 55 5 B5EE

RMB93,800,000 Operation of wind farm

2000000078 7T - — 100 100 HEWF

HK$20,000,000 Rental of properties

ARH80,0000007T - — 100 100 BERAHER

RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
distnbution of wind
turbine generators

AR50,0000007T - - 95 95  BERMEEKREKER

RMB50,000,000 Manufacture and
distnbution of wind
turbine generators
and blades

AR 800000007 - — 5641 564l BERASHEEER

RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and

distrbution of
wind blades
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For the year ended 3| December 2014

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

43. TEMBAT BEATR
RELESH »)

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEERAZ
HE/ R BAgGE B
Nominal value of RARHE% REEE®%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable IEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %
ij PENE
Subsidiaries (Continued)
EPEREEE : (8)
Registered and operating in the PRC: (Continued)
MAMBBEE THITRNER AR AE40,0000007 - — 100 100 BERSHENER
RMB40,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
telecommunication
products
IRRAERREARELAA ARE 100000007 65 65 - — DHEHER
Beijing CASC Energine Wind RMB10,000,000 Distribution of wind
Turbine Co. Ltd* turbine products
HRmABREERRRERR AR AR%80,0000007C - — 100 100 RERDHEH
RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and
distrbution of wind
turbine generators
BEMABRMERRE AR AR%20,0000007T - — 100 100 HEME
RMB20,000,000 Rental of properties

174
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43. TEMBAT BEATR

EELESEH o

LEER

Name of company

BENF

Associates

R RATE -

Registered and operating in the PRC:

THERRNEEARLT
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd”

EMERENEERRAF
Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co, Ltd###

AR R AR AR

EOMABRAANERERLA
Wauxi CASC Energine Xindali
Electricity Co, Ltd*

ENMRERENEBARAA
Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co, Ltd.
MRS ERERIARA
Suzhou Aerospace TITP Wind

Power Technology Co, Ltd*###

BE—F—FEf+=—f=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 2014

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)
BRTEERAZ
HE/ R BAgGE B
Nominal value of RAREE% REEER%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
share capital/ held by attributable TEER
registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %
AR# 3333200007 - — 25 L RSEE
RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm
AR 4382000007 - — 1535 I535 REBEE
RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm
AR 1500000007 - - 20 0 EFEE
RMB150,000,000 Operation of wind farm
AR 1200000007 - — 4167 4167 BERAHEE
RMB120,000,000 Manufacture and
distbution of wind
turbine generators
ABRH 1710700007 - — 4878 4878 BE5EE
RMBI71,070,000 Operation of wind farm
AE#2000000007C - — 3500 4128 BERHHEKER
RMB200,000,000 Manufacture and

distnbution of wind

turbine products
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43. TEMBAT BEATR
RELESH »)

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (Continued)
ERTEEREZ
HE/ ERRE RrgszEAL
Nominal value of ARARE% REBEE%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
NAER share capitall held by attributable TEER
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %
RELE
Joint ventures
REEZMAYLRES -
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IR EREEREIRERRARERAR 16000000 TC - = 49 49 RENEEPRERAM
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine US$16,000,000 Manufacture of
Management Systems Co, Ltd* automotive engine
management
systems and
components
THMAEREERAREBRAA AR¥1000000007C - — 50 50 HEEH
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind RMB100,000,000 Manufacture of
Turbine Manufacture Co, Ltd* wind turbine
AREREERMERERAA AR¥926100007C - — 49 49 EEEE

¢ RABEEMzPIESERE -
o RPBEEMZ2IIELE -

o RZZE-—OFE+-A=+—H ' K&
EERVBEZAZAREESNEE
ERMEEE - Et ARAEER
EREEUZARBEEATES
W ARIARAAEBBESL 15%2 8

wa ER G WERRRMZ D A BEINE
B BYASEERZARZBER
4128% BB E3500%  EESAK A
BAE  ZARRMERHARAER

SEZHERTF -

TEMAERER(KE) ERAR | 2014 £

RMB92,610,000
#
#Hit
HitH

Operation of wind farm

Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.
Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out
of nine directors to the board of directors of this company as at 3|
December 2014. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has significant influence over the company. Accordingly, the
company is accounted for as a 15% owned associate of the Group.

#### During the year, two existing shareholders have injected additional capital

to this company resulting in a dilution of the Group's equity interest
in this company from 41.28% to 35.00%. Composition of the board
remains unchanged and this company is accounted for as an associate of
the Group for both years.
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43. TEMBAT  BEATR

EELESEH o

BRI B2 AR - ARERE L
ARRBD BRI RHS AR EITLE
B -

EERA - LOIERNAZAAANE
DA BEANRAELE NYE
AREEANAEL EEATLAMAR
AREZAEFEZIENS - EER
B HIIKEKBAARBEAALE
B BSABBRIE -

BERE O - HEQDEERTER

BIRES °

ARREZRR  F2EWMBARZHE
EH AR TBEAX

BE—F—MF+-FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2014

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets or form a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries are all individually not

material.
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44. EEAASIHERREZE  44. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

# OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
BERNRERRARNGTERAEZZE Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
Bt the end of the reporting period includes:
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EEE&E Fixed assets 68 85
PNl Interests in subsidiaries 1,387,319 1,387,319
HoAth FE R Other receivables 3,404 3,750
FEU BT A B3R Amount due from subsidiaries 224,707 210,193
Re RIBITHES Cash and bank balances 382,372 70,630
BERE Total assets 1,997,870 1,671,977
mEaE Current liabilities
Hoh R Other payables 6,425 7,173
RITREER Short-term bank loan 60,000 —
BERE Total liabilities 66,425 7,173
BESE Net assets 1,931,445 664,804
BEARRIEE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 436,900 396,900
A (PTEE 45) Reserves (Note 45) 1,494,545 1,267,904
ARBIERAEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 1,931,445 1,664,804

TEMRERER(EE) BRAA
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45. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

BEEMR
f#fE
RDEE 1Rl b Asset RiER
Share Special  revaluation Accumulated L
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
R-B—=F

—A—H At | January 2013 2,483,141 117,554 (4,623) (1,327,712) 1,268,360
HEAHEE Reclassification adjustment

TREER upon sale of available-

BN AR for-sale financial asset — 4623 — 4623
KEEER Loss for the year — — — (5079) (5079)
AEERE Total comprehensive income

WA (Rx)#HE (expense) for the year — - 4623 (5079) (456)
R-B—=F

+—A—+F At 31 December 2013 2,483,141 117,554 —  (1,332,791) 1,267,904
rEEERR Loss and total comprehensive

PHAXAHE expense for the year - - - (22,615) (22,615)
Egalhan) Issue of shares 249,256 - - - 249,256
RZZ—MF

+-F=+-A At 31 December 2014 2,732,397 117,554 —  (1,355,406) 1,494,545
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BE+-A=1—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
2010 201 | 2012 2013 2014
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
HEH Turnover 698,083 406,285 989,885 1,329,644 2,699,950
R A A Profit before taxation 122,212 13,223 13,354 31438 94,280
HIEX H Taxation charge (20,128) (11,318) (7933) (4,049) (1,296)
AEERF Profit for the year 102,084 [,905 5421 27,389 92,984
Rt=A=+-H
At 3| December
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEES Total assets 3,109,991 3,851,458 4561601 5204318 5,905,267
ELEk Total liabilities (1,350,824) (1967,067) (2,580,408) (3237,164)  (3,564,538)
FEEM Net assets [759,167 [ 884,391 [981,193 1967 154 2,340,729

TEMRERER(EE) BRAR | 2014 FR






CHINA

ENERGINE

From Engine to New Energy

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
A K R B () AR A A

Tel B3 : (852) 2586 1185
Fax f#H : (852) 2531 0088
Email EE  : energine@energine.hk

Website #83k : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRBPBEE1SRPIRESRIATIZIT0ONE



	封面

	企業文化
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員之個人資料
	企業管治報告書
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務資料摘要
	封底內頁

	封底


